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16" May, 2025 

BSE Ltd. 
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers 
Dalal Street 
Mumbai — 400001 

SCRIP CODE: 506520 

Subject: Requlation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
‘ Regulations 2015 

Dear Sir, 

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, please find enclosed herewith Annual Report for Financial Year 2024-2025 
along with the notice of 63 Annual General Meeting of the Company. 

The 63” Annual General Meeting of the Company is scheduled to be held on Tuesday, 10" June, 
2025 at 12:15 P.M. IST through Video Conferencing (VC)/Other Audio Visual Means. The said 

Annual Report along with notice is also available on the website of the Company at 

www. jayshreechemicals.com. 

The cut-off date for e-voting by members is 03° June, 2025. 

The remote e-voting shall be available from Saturday 7" June, 2025 (09:00 A.M. IST) till Monday 

9" June, 2025 (05:00 P.M. IST). 

The above mentioned Annual Report and Notice will be sent through e-mail only to the members 

of the Company whose email addresses are registered with the Company or Depositories in 

Compliance with General Circulars dated 5" May, 2020 and other subsequent circulars including 

the latest one being dated 19" September, 2024 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. 

Please take the above on record, 

Thanking you. 

Yours faithfully, 
For Jayshree Chemicals Limited 

Fae 

Puja Guin 
Compliance Officer and Company Secretary 
ICS! Membership No. ACS 29481 
Enct: As stated above
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JAYSHREE CHEMICALS LIMITED 

Regd.Office : 14, N.S. Road, Kolkata-700001 

CIN: L24119WB1962PLC218608 

Phone : 033-71500500 Fax : 033-22263257 E-mail :co.sec@jayshreechemicals.com 

Website : www.jayshreechemicals.com 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 63rd Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on Tuesday, the 10th June, 

2025 at 12.15 PM. through Video Conferencing (“VC")/ Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM") to transact the following 

business: - 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. To receive and adopt the statement of Profit and Loss along with Statement of Cash Flows of the Company for the 

year ended 31st March, 2025 and the Balance Sheet as at that date together with the Reports of the Directors and 

the Auditors thereon. 

To appoint a Director in place of Shri Virendraa Bangur (DIN: 00237043) who retires by rotation and being eligible 

offers himself for re-appointment. 

To consider and if thought fit pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as an Ordinary resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 24A of SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 along with any other applicable provisions of 

any other law for the time being in force Shri Arun Kumar Jaiswal of M/s Jaiswal A & Co. having Certificate of Practice 

No. 12281 and Membership No. 29827 be and are hereby appointed as Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the 

Company's financial years 2025-26 to 2029-2030 on such remuneration as may be mutually agreed upon by the 

Board of Directors and the Secretarial Auditors.’ 

SPECIAL BUSINESS 

4. To consider and if thought fit pass with or without modification the following resolution as a Special Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 180(1)(a) and other applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (including statutory 

modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), the provisions of the Memorandum and 

Articles of Association of the Company, the provisions of Regulation 37A of the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time and other 

applicable provisions thereof, and such other approvals, consents, permissions and sanctions as may be necessary, 

all other applicable laws and regulations, as amended, supplemented or re-enacted from time to time and subject 

to approvals, consents, permissions and sanctions of other authorities as may be required, consent of the Members 

of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company to sell / transfer /dispose off 

the Wind —Mill of the Company situated at Coimbatore, Tamil Nadu to M/s Vaishnav Wind Infra Pvt. Ltd, a company 

incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 (Buyer) on a slump sale basis (as defined under Section 2(42C) of the 

Income-Tax Act, 1961) for a lump sum cash consideration as stated in the explanatory statement annexed to this 

Notice and on such terms and conditions as may be deemed fit by the Board” 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds, 

matters and things, as may be required or deemed necessary or incidental thereto and to settle and finalize all 

issues that may arise in this regard, without further referring to the Members of the Company, including without 

limitation, negotiating, finalizing and executing necessary agreements, deeds/agreements of sell and such other 

documents as may be deemed necessary or expedient in its own discretion and in the best interest of the Company.’ 
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“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT a certified true copy of this resolution duly signed by any Director of the Company, be 

sent to the concerned authority, for their information & records.” 

Notice 

By Order of the Board 

Registered Office: For Jayshree Chemicals Limited 

14, N.S. Road, Puja Guin 

Kolkata-700001 Company Secretary 

Date: 24th April, 2025 ICSI Mem. No. ACS29481 

  

NOTES: 

1. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to special business to be 

transacted at Annual General Meeting is annexed herewith as Annexure - A. 

2. The relevant details with respect to Item nos. 2 Notice, pursuant to Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & 

Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard-2 issued by the Institute of Company 

Secretaries of India are given in an annexure, annexed hereto and marked as Annexure - B. 

Conduct of AGM through VC/OAVM 

1. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide its General Circular No. 09/2024 dated September 19, 2024, and circular 
issued by SEBI vide circular no. SEBI/ HO/ CFD/ CFDPoD-2/ P/ CIR/ 2024/ 133 dated October 3, 2024 (“SEBI Circular”) 

and other applicable circulars and notifications issued (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment 

thereof for the time being in force and as amended from time to time, companies are allowed to hold AGM through 

Video Conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM), without the physical presence of members at a 

common venue. In compliance with the said Circulars, AGM shall be conducted through VC / OAVM. 

The Registered Office of the Company shall be deemed to be the venue for the AGM. The Notice of the AGM along 

with the Annual Report for Financial Year 2024-2025 is being sent by electronic mode to those Members whose 

email addresses are registered with the Company/Depositories/Registrar and Share Transfer Agents. 

(ii). The Company has entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating 

voting through electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting’s agency. The facility of casting votes by a member 

using remote e-voting as well as the e-voting system on the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL. 

(iii). The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of 
the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of 

participation at the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 members on first come 

first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), 
Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit 

Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors 

etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account of first come first served basis. 

(iv). The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of 

reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

(v). Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the facility 

to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this EGM/AGM. However, the Body 

Corporates are entitled to appoint authorised representatives to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM and 

participate there at and cast their votes through e-voting. 

(vi). In line with the MCA Circular No. 17/2020 dated 13th April, 2020, the Notice and the Annual Report for Financial 

Year 2024-2025 has been uploaded on the Company's website at www.jayshreechemicals.com, website of 

Bombay Stock Exchange at www.bseindia.com and on the website of NSDL at www.evoting.nsdl.com . 

=
 AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013 read with MCA Circular issued from time to time. 

(vii 
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Jayshree Chemicals Limited 

Notice 

(viii). All the documents referred in the accompanying notice will be available for inspection through electronic 

mode on all working days till the date of this Annual General Meeting. 

3. Voting through electronic means 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) 
issued by the ICSI and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as 

amended), and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs from time to time the Company is providing 

facility of remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, 

the Company has entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating 

voting through electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote 

e-Voting system as well as e-voting on the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL. 

4. Theinstructions for shareholders voting electronically are as under: 

The remote e-voting period commences at 9.00 A.M. (IST) on Saturday, 7th June, 2024, and ends at 5.00 P.M. (IST) 

on Monday, 9th June, 2025. During this period, Members holding shares either in physical or de-materialized form 

as on the Cut-Off Date i.e., Tuesday, 3rd June, 2025, may cast their votes electronically. The e-voting module shall be 

disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. Those Members, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility 

and have not cast their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-voting and are otherwise not barred from doing 
so, Shall be eligible to vote through e-voting system during the AGM. 

The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company 

as on Tuesday, 3rd June, 2025 (“Cut-Off Date”). 

SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 9th December, 2020, under Regulation 44 of Securities 

and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are 
required to provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, 

it has been observed that the participation by the public non-institutional shareholder’s/retail shareholders is at 

a negligible level. Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed 

entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords 

by the shareholders. In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it 

has been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login credential, through 
their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders would be able to 

cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication 

but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process. 

SEBI vide its notification dated 24th January, 2022 has mandated that all request for transfer of securities including 

transmission and transposition request shall be processed only in dematerialized form. Accordingly, Members are 

advised to dematerialize the shares held by them in physical form. Members can contact the Company or RTA i.e. 

Niche Technologies Pvt. Ltd. for assistance in this regard. 

In terms of SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 9th December, 2020 on e-Voting facility 

provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 

through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised 

to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Individual 
shareholders holding securities in Demat mode is given below: 

How do | vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below: 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat 
mode 

In terms of SEBI circular dated 9th December, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 

shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with 
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Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in 

their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

Type of shareholders Login Method 
  

Individual 1. 

Shareholders holding 
securities in demat 

mode with NSDL. 

For OTP based login you can click on https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin. 
jsp. You will have to enter your 8-digit DP ID,8-digit Client Id, PAN No., Verification code and generate 

OTP. Enter the OTP received on registered email id/mobile number and click on login. After successful 
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. 

Click on company name or e-Voting service provider ie. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting 
website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 

voting during the meeting. 

If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at https://eservices.nsdl. 

com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/ 
IdeasDirectReg.jsp section , this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password. After 

successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click 

on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on 

company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website 

of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting 
during the meeting. 

If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at https://eservices.nsdl. 
com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/ 
IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www. 

evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting 

system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A 

new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number 

hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful 

authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. 

Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting 

website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 

voting during the meeting. 

Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the 
QR code mentioned below for seamless voting experience. 

NSDL Mobile App is available on 

€ App Store > Google Play 
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Jayshree Chemicals Limited 

  

Notice 

Type of shareholders Login Method 

Individual 1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing user id and 

Shareholders holding 
securities in demat 

mode with CDSL 

password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. 

The users to login Easi /Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on 

login icon & New System Myeasi Tab and then user your existing my easi username & password. 

After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for eligible 
companies where the evoting is in progress as per the information provided by company. On clicking 

the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for 

casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during 
the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service 
Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly. 

If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at CDSL website 
www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option. 

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account Number 

and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will 
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. 

After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in 
progress and also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 
  

Individual 

Shareholders (holding 
securities in demat 

mode) login through 
their depository 
participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository Participant 

registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting 
option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 

authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service 

provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during 
the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 
  

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget 

Password option available at abovementioned website. 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through 

Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

Login type Helpdesk details 
  

Individual Shareholders holding securities in | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk 

demat mode with NSDL by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.com or call at 022 - 4886 7000 
  

Individual Shareholders holding securities in | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk 

demat mode with CDSL by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 

toll free no. 1800-21-09911 
  

  

  

B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl. 

com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Sharehold- 

er/Member’ section. 

A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown 

on the screen. 

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with 

your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting 

and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.   
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4. 

  

Your User ID details are given below : 
  

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL or | Your User ID is: 

  

  

CDSL) or Physical 

a) For Members who hold shares in demat 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID 

account with NSDL. For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 12****** 
then your user ID is IN300***12******, 

b) For Members who hold shares in demat 16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

account with CDSL. For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** then 

  

  
c) For Members holding shares in Physical Form. | EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the 

company 

For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 

then user ID is 101456001***     
  

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below: 

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and cast your 

vote. 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which 

was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’ you need to enter the ‘initial password’ 

and the system will force you to change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is com- 
municated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the 

email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 

8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares 

held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’and your ‘initial password’ 

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those shareholders 
whose email ids are not registered. 

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the” Initial password” or have forgotten your password: 

a) Click on“Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or CDSL) 

option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on www.evoting. 

nsdl.com. 

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at evoting@nsdl. 

com mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered ad- 

dress etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting system 
of NSDL. 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box. 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 

9. _ After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.   
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Jayshree Chemicals Limited 

Notice 

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system. 
  

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system? 

1. 

7. 

After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares 
and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 

Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period and casting your 

vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM" link placed under 

“Join Meeting”. 

Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which 

you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted. 

Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed. 

You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page. 

Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed top modify your vote. 
  

  

  
General Guidelines for shareholders 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG 
Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly au- 

thorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to jaiswalarun82@gmail.com witha 

copy marked to evoting@nsdl.com and co.sec@jayshreechemicals.com. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than 

individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by 

clicking on “Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter” displayed under “e-Voting” tab in their login. 

It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your 

password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in 

the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Phys- 

ical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password. 

In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting user 

manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on.: 022 - 4886 7000 

or send a request to Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, Senior Manager at evoting@nsdl.com     

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user id and 

password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice: 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share 

certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of 

Aadhar Card) by email to co.sec@jayshreechemicals.com. 

In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), 

Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), 

AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to co.sec@jayshreechemicals.com. If you are an Individual 

shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 

1 (A) ie. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in 

demat mode. 

Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.com for procuring user id and password 

for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

In terms of SEBI circular dated 9th December, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 

shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with 

Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID 

correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility. 
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db 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS UNDER: - 

1. 

2. 

The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for remote e-voting. 

Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted 

their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible 

to vote through e-Voting system in the AGM. 

Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the EGM/AGM. However, they will not 

be eligible to vote at the AGM. 

The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-Voting on the 

day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting. 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE EGM/AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER: 

1. Members will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting 

system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-Voting system. 

After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM" placed under “Join meeting” menu against company 

name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will 

be available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that the 

members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password 

may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last 

minute rush. 

Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. 

Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance 

during the meeting. 

Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via 

Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore 

recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

Members who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in advance mentioning 

their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at co.sec@jayshreechemicals.com. 

The same will be replied by the company suitably. 

Members who would like to express their views/ask questions as a speaker at the Meeting may pre-register 

themselves by sending a request from their registered e-mail address mentioning their names, DP ID and 

Client ID/folio number, PAN and mobile number at co.sec@jayshreechemicals.com between 17th May, 2025, 

09.00 a.m. (IST) to 21st May, 2025 05.00 p.m. (IST). Only those members who have pre-registered themselves 

as a speaker will be allowed to express their views/ask questions during the AGM. The Company reserves the 

right to restrict the number of speakers depending on the availability of time for the AGM. 

6. Other Information 

The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which voting is to be held, allow voting 

with the assistance of scrutinizer, by use of “e-voting” for all those members who are present at the AGM but have not 

cast their votes by availing the e-voting facility. 

Shri Arun Kumar Jaiswal, of M/s Jaiswal A & Co. having Certificate of Practise No. 12281 and Membership No- 29827, 

Kolkata has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner. 

The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the general meeting, unblock the votes cast through e-voting in 

the presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company and shall make, not later than three days 

of the conclusion of the AGM, a scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or 

a person authorized by him in writing, who shall counter sign the same and declare the result of the voting forthwith. 
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Jayshree Chemicals Limited 

Notice 

The Results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the Company (www. 

jayshreechemicals.com) and on service provider's website (www.evoting.nsdl.com) immediately after the declaration of 

result by the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing. The results shall also be immediately forwarded to the 

BSE Limited. 

By Order of the Board 

  

Registered Office: For Jayshree Chemicals Limited 

14, N.S. Road, Puja Guin 

Kolkata-700001 Company Secretary 

Date: 24th April, 2025 ICSI Mem. No. ACS29481 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT: Annexure -A 

Item No. 1 

Explanatory statement for item no. 4 is being provided in accordance with Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, and 

Regulation 37A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”). As 

per provisions of Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 and regulation 37A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, mandates that the Board of Directors of a company shall exercise the power 

to sell, lease or otherwise dispose of the whole or substantially the whole of any undertaking(s) of the company, only 

with the approval of the members of the Company by way of a special resolution. 

Further as per provisions of Section 180 (1)(a) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

rules made thereunder if the company want to sell, lease or otherwise dispose of the whole or substantially the whole of 

the undertaking of the company or where the company owns more than one undertaking, of the whole or substantially 

the whole of any of such undertakings, then it requires the approval of the shareholders by way of a special resolution 

through Postal Ballot as per Section 110 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 22 of the Companies (Management 

& Administration) Rules, 2014. But as per the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, any item of business required to be 

transacted by means of postal ballot, may be transacted at a general meeting by a company and is required to provide 

the facility to members to vote by electronic means under section 108, in the manner provided in that section. As the 

Company has more than 1,000 shareholders, the Company is providing facility to the members to vote electronically at 

the Annual General Meeting. Therefore, the Board recommends the Resolution as set out in Item No. 4 for approval of 

the Members as Special Resolution. 

The Board of Directors of the Company, at its meeting held on April 24, 2025 had approved the resolution to sell / 

dispose - off its Wind — Mill situated at Coimbatore, Tamil Nadu on a slump sale basis (as defined under Section 2(42C) of 

the Income-Tax Act, 1961) as per the Term Sheet to be executed between the parties and as approved by the Board of 

Directors. The net proceeds from the sale of the Undertaking will be utilized for enhancement of working capital of the 

Company, future expansion program or general business purpose. 

Further pursuant to Section 180(1)(a), of the Companies Act, 2013 and regulation 37A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, members of the Company are further requested to note that their 

consent to the Board is being sought by way of a Special Resolution to sell and transfer the property of the Company 

situated at Coimbatore, Tamil Nadu to M/s Vaishnav Wind Infra Pvt. Ltd. for a consideration of 2.76 crore subject to such 
adjustments and the terms and conditions as may be agreed upon as per the Term Sheet and any other document to 

be executed between the parties in connection with the slump sale and as approved by the Board of Directors of the 

Company. 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or Senior Management of the Company or their respective relatives are 

in anyway concerned or interested, either directly or indirectly in passing of the said resolution, save and except to the 

extent of their shareholding in the Company, if any. 
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Details of the Asset being sold on slump -sale basis 

Sr.No. Particulars Description 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

1 Make Of WTG Suzlon S66 model 

2 Capacity of WTG 1.25 MW 

3 No.of. Wind Turbine Generator 1 no (P211) 

4 Land details 2 Acres, Dry Land 

5 Location S.F.No. 374 (Part), Vill-Bogampatti, Taluk-Sulur, Dist- Coimbatore, Tamil 

Nadu 641658. 

6 Date of Commissioning 30.09.2009 

7 Sale Consideration (“PRICE”) 2.76 cr/- (ON Slump Sale Basis) 
  

DETAILS AS REQUIRED UNDER REGULATION 37A AND CONTINUOUS DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS AS PER 

REGULATION 30 OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015: 

S.No Particulars Details 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

A The amount and percentage of the turnover or Turnover- 1619.20 (Lacs) -96% 

revenue or income and net worth contributed bY Networth-274.06 (Lacs)-27% 
such unit or division of the listed entity during the 

last financial year. 

B Date on which the agreement for sale has been Term Sheet signed on 24" April, 2025. 

entered into. 

C The expected date of completion of sale/disposal. June, 2025 (Tentative) 

D Consideration received from such sale or disposal. 276.00 Lacs 

E Brief details of the buyers and whether any of the The buyer is M/s Vaishnav Wind Infra Pvt. Ltd. it does not 

buyers belongs to the promoter/promoter group/ belong to Promoter/Promoter Group/Group Companies. 

group companies. If yes details thereof. 

F Whether the transaction would fall within the Not Applicable 

related party transactions?. If yes, whether the 

same is done at arms length. 

G_ Additionally, in case of a slump sale, indicative Since there isno underlying amalgamation or merger in the 

disclosures provided for amalgamation/merger transaction, this disclosure under SI.No. G is not applicable. 

shall be disclosed by the listed entity with respect 

to such slump sale. 

H Name of the entity(ies) forming part of the slump Please see the responses provided under SI No. A and E 

sale, details in brief such as size, turnover etc. above. 

| Whether the sale, lease or disposal of the The Slump Sale is being undertaken between the Company 

undertaking is outside the Scheme _ of and M/s. Vaishnav Wind Infra Pvt. Ltd. The proposed sale 

Arrangement? If yes, details of the same including falls under the threshold limits of “Undertaking” in terms of 

compliance with Regulation 37A of SEBI (LODR) Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, 

Regulations, 2015. the provisions of Regulation 37A of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 

2015 are captured in the explanatory statement. 

J Rationale of the Slump Sale To mobilize resources for profitable areas of operations. 

K Object of Sale of the Asset To focus on core competencies and utilize the proceeds 

of the sale for expansion of the current chemical trading 

business, reducing overhead costs, financing incremental 

working capital requirements and general corporate 

purpose. 
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Jayshree Chemicals Limited 

Notice 

S.No Particulars Details 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

L End Use of the Proceeds The net proceeds from the sale of the Undertaking will 

be utilized for enhancement of working capital of the 

Company, future expansion program or general business 

purpose. 

M _ Brief Details of change in shareholding pattern There will be no change in the shareholding of the 

(if any) of listed entity. Company. 

Annexure B 

SI. No. Details 

Name of the Director Shri Virendraa Bangur 

DIN 00237043 

Date of Birth 19% March, 1975 

Qualification Graduate 

Date of first appointment in the 5% June, 2003 

Board 

Brief resume, Experience & ShriBangur (50 years) isa Commerce Graduate, is a Director of the Company since 

Expertise in specific functional 5‘ June, 2003. 

areas Shri Bangur belongs to the new breed of modern tech-savvy entrepreneurs. As 

with most other scions of the Industrial Empire, Shri Bangur plunged into the world 

of business at a very young age. He has had varied experience in the industrial 

and corporate world, with areas special interest including paper, chemicals, IT, 

electronics, optic fibre, telephone and power cables and plantations. 

He was a Committee Member of Indian Chamber of Commerce and is currently 
serving asa Committee Member of the Bharat Chamber of Commerce. Additionally, 
he isa member of the Young Presidents’ Organization (YPO) and the Entrepreneur 

Organization (EO). 

He has more than 31 years of rich experience in various aspects of business viz. 

marketing, administration, risk management and finance. 

Term and condition of Re-appointment as Non-Executive Director, liable to retire by rotation. 

appointment or re-appointment 

along with details of remuneration 

sought to be paid. 

Entitled to receive Sitting Fees from the Company for attending meetings of 

Board/ Committee(s). 
  

Relation with other Directors or 
Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company. 

NA 

  

Directorship in other companies 

including listed entities 

West Coast Paper Mills Limited; 

Andhra Paper Limited; 

Taparia Tools Limited; 

Akhivi Tea Plantations and Agro Industries Limited; 

) 

) 

) 

) 

5) Gold Mohore Investment Co. Limited; 

) Gloster Cables Limited; 

) Kilkotagiri and Thirumbadi Plantations Limited; 

) West Coast Opticable Limited; 

) Shree Satyanarayan Properties Private Limited. 
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SI. No. Details 

Listed entities from which the Nil 

Director has resigned in the past 

three years 

Membership or Chairmanship of 

Committees of Board 

Shareholding in the Company. 

Number of meetings of the Board 

attended during the Financial Year 

2024-25 

Andhra Paper Limited 

1) Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee-Member; 

2) CSR Committee-Chairman 

West Coast Paper Mills Limited 

1) CSR Committee-Chairman; 

2) Risk Management Committee -Chairman; 

Kilkotagiri and Thirumbadi Plantations Limited 

1) Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee-Chairman; 

2) Nomination & Remuneration Committtee-Member 

Akhivi Tea Plantations and Agro Industries Limited 

1) Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee-Chairman. 

492500 

As stated in the Corporate Governance Report annexed hereto 
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Jayshree Chemicals Limited 

Directors’ Report 

To 

The Members 

The Directors have pleasure in presenting herewith their Annual Report together with the audited Accounts of the 

Company for the year ended 31st March, 2025. 

  

  

  

  

FINANCIAL RESULTS (summary) 31-3-2025 31-3-2024 

(= in Lakh) (= in Lakh) 

Profit/(Loss) for the year (26.61) (20.18) 

Less/ (Add): 

Current Tax - - 
  

Income Tax related to earlier year - - 

MAT Credit Entitlement : - 
  

  

  

  

  

  

Deferred Tax 5 - 

(26.61) (350.36) 
Add: Debit Balance brought forward (3162.54) (2812.18) 

Retained Earnings of a business Combination (0.16) 

Balance carried forward to next year (3189.31) (3162.54) 
  

STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS 

The Company operates in two business verticals i.e. trading in chemicals and sale of electricity generated from renewable 
source. 

During the year under review, the revenue from operations stood at Rs 1688.61 Lakhs as against Rs. 1281.39 Lakhs in the 

previous year and the net loss from the operations stood at Rs. (26.61) Lakhs as against net profit of Rs. 350.36 Lakhs in 

the previous year. 

STATEMENT CONTAINING SALIENT FEATURES OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE SUBSIDIARY 

Wholly Owned Subsidiary Companies namely M/s. Bangur Exim Private Limited & M/s. East Coast Powers Limited 
(Transferor Companies) have merged into the Company (Transferee Company) pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation 

sanctioned by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench vide its Order dated 25th April, 2024. As on 

date of this report, the Company do not have any subsidiary. 

CAPITAL / FINANCE 

As on 31st March, 2025, the issued, subscribed and paid up share capital of your Company stood at Rs.29,32,64,570/-, 

comprising of 2,93,26,457 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each. 

Details required pursuant to Section 134(3) of Companies Act, 2013 

a) Web-link of Annual Return 

The Annual Return of the Company as required under Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 is available on the 

website of the Company at www.jayshreechemicals.com/anualreturn.html. 

b) Details of Board Meetings 

During the year 2024-25, 4 (Four) Board Meetings were held, details of which are given below: 

  

  

  

  

Date of the Meeting No. of Directors, who attended the Meeting 

16/05/2024 6 

08/08/2024 5 

11/11/2024 6 

14/02/2025 5 
  

A detailed note on the Board and its Committees is provided under Corporate Governance Report Section. 
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Directors’ Report 

c) 

d) 

e) 

Directors’ Responsibility Statement 

Pursuant to the requirements of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, your 

Directors confirm that: 

in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with 

proper explanation relating to material departures; 

ii. the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgements 

and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 

Company at the end of the financial year and of the loss of the Company for that period; 

iii, the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and 

detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

iv. the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 

v. the Directors, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal 

financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and 

vi. the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 

that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

Declaration by Independent Directors 

Inthe opinion of the Board and as confirmed by Independent Directors, they fulfil the conditions specified in Section 

149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder about their status as Independent Directors of 

the Company. 

Committees of The Board 

During the financial year ended on March 31, 2025, the Company has three committees as mentioned below: 

1. Audit Committee 

2. Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

3. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

Audit Committee 

The Composition, terms of reference and other details of the Committee forms part of the Corporate Governance 

Report, forming part of this Annual Report. All the recommendations made by the Audit Committee during the year 

were accepted by the Board. 

Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

The Composition, terms of reference and other details of the Committee, forms part of the Corporate Governance 

Report, forming part of this Annual Report. 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

The Composition, terms of reference and other details of the Committee forms part of the Corporate Governance 

Report, forming part of this Annual Report. 

The Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company 

1. The Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company is based on the provisions contained in the 

Companies Act, 2013, the Rules made thereunder and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015. 

2. Remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees is based on the recommendation 
of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee on the basis of experience and exposure in the prescribed 

fields. 

Annual Report 2025 15 

s
y
i
o
d
a
y
 
A
1
0
3
N
}
e
1
5



Jayshree Chemicals Limited 

Directors’ Report 

f) 

9) 

h) 

i) 

j) 

k) 

I) 

m) 

n) 

0) 

16 

The said Nomination and Remuneration policy is available on the website of the Company at www.jayshreechemicals. 

com/JCL_Nomination_Remuneration_Policy.pdf. 

Explanations or comments by the Board on every qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer 

made:- 

i) by the Auditors in their report: No qualification or reservation has been 
observed by the Auditors in their Report. 

ii) | By the Company Secretary in Practice No qualification or reservation has been 
in his Secretarial Audit Report : observed by the Secretarial Auditor in his Report 

Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under Section 186. 

Particulars of such loans and investments are duly disclosed in the Accounts. 

No guarantee was given by the Company. 

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in Sub-section (1) of Section 188. 

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 is annexed 

herewith [in Form AOC-2] as Annexure-1. 

Satisfaction and modification of Charges 

The Company has satisfied all the charges on the assets of the Company. However, despite the Company having 

paid the entire amount of Rs.388500/- to the Charge Holder in respect of a Charge and obtaining the “No Objection 
Certificate” from the Charge Holder, still a charge of Rs. 3,88,500/- is being shown on the MCA site. A request letter 

has already been sent to the Charge Holder in this regard and the same is under process. 

Transfer to Reserves. 

During the year under review, no amount was transferred to Reserves. However, net profit/loss of Rs. (26.61) Lakh is 
carried to the Balance Sheet. 

Recommendation of Dividend 

The Board has not recommended any dividend for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025. 

Material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the Company: 

No material changes affecting the financial position of the Company occurred between the end of the financial year 
to which this financial statements relate on the date of this report. 

Details of conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo: 

During the year, the Company had no manufacturing activity and as such details of conservation of energy and 

technology absorption are not given. 

During the year, there was no foreign exchange earnings or outgo. 

Development and implementation of risk management policy 

As per the requirements of the Act, the Company has developed and implemented the Risk Management Policy and 

the Audit Committee of the Board reviews the same periodically. 

The Risk Management Policy of the Company identifies, evaluates and mitigates the operational, strategic and 

external environment risks. For the same a Committee which has overall responsibility for monitoring and approving 

the risk policies and associated practices of the Company has been formed and it reviews the risks associated with 

the Company periodically. 

Policy of the Company on Corporate Social Responsibility. 

Pursuant to Section 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 as and when your Company fulfills the criteria specified in 

Section 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, it will approve the CSR Budget. As no CSR activity has been carried no 

Report on CSR Activities/ Initiatives is enclosed along with this Report. 
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p) Formal annual evaluation by the Board of its own performance and that of its committees and individual 
directors 

Complied with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

Ratio of Directors Remuneration to Median Employees’ Remuneration & other as per Rule 5(1) to the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 

(i) 

(iii) 

The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company 

for the financial year: 

Ratio of remuneration of Shri Rajesh Kumar Singhi, Executive Director & CFO to the median remuneration of 

the employees: 2.69:1 

None of the other Directors received any remuneration other than the sitting fees for attending meetings of 
the Board or any Committee of the Board. 

The percentage increase/(decrease) in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive 
Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year; 

Percentage increase (decrease) in remuneration of Shri Rajesh Kumar Singhi, Executive Director & CFO: 2.13 % 

Percentage increase (decrease) in remuneration of Shri Akash Ghuwalewala, Company Secretary: 5.93% 

The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: 

During the F.Y. 2024-25, the percentage increase (decrease) in the median remuneration of employees was 

7.95 %. 

The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company: 

10 permanent employees were on the rolls of the Company at the close of the financial year. 

The explanation on the relationship between average increase in remuneration and company Performance: 

In view of the Company’s performance, only minimum increases were given to its employees. 

Comparison of the remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel against the performance of the Company: 

Total remuneration paid to the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company during the year: Rs.33.74 Lacs /- 

Variations in the market capitalisation of the Company, price earnings ratio as at the closing date of the current 

financial year and previous financial year and percentage increase over decrease in the market quotations of 
the shares of the Company in comparison to the rate at which the Company came out with the last public offer. 

Market Capitalisation as on 31/03/2025 Rs. 7.15 * 29326457 = Rs. 209,684,168 

Market Capitalisation as on 31/03/2024 Rs. 9.12 * 29326457 = Rs. 267,457,288 

Price Earning ratio as on 31/03/2025: 7.15/ (0.09) = -79.44 

Price Earning ratio as on 31/03/2024 : 9.12/ (1.19) = -7.66 

% increase or decrease in the market quotations of the shares of the Company in comparison to the rate at 

which the Company came out with the last public offer = Rs. (15-9.12)/15 * 100 = 39.20% (decrease) 

(viii) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the Managerial personnel 

(ix) 

in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and 

justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial 

remuneration: 

In view of the Company’s performance, only minimum increases were given to its employees. 

Comparison of the remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel against the performance of the Company; 

In view of the present working, only minimum increase was given to the Key Managerial Personnels of the 

Company. 
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Jayshree Chemicals Limited 

Directors’ Report 

(x) The key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by the directors: 

The remuneration availed by the directors during the year did not consist of any variable component. 

(xi) The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that of the employees who are not directors but 

receive remuneration in excess of the highest paid director during the year: 

No employee received remuneration in excess of the remuneration paid to the Executive Director & CFO 

during the year. 

(xii) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company. 

The Company follows its remuneration policy in fixing the remuneration of its employees or directors. 

GENERAL 

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there were no trans- 

actions on these items during the year under review: 

1. Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act. 

2. Issue of equity shares with differential rights, sweat equity shares or ESOP. 

3. The Executive Director of the Company do not receive any remuneration or commission from the Company’s 

subsidiary. 

4. The Arbitral Tribunal at Cuttack Odisha vide its Order dated 12th April, 2024 has directed the Company to pay 

reimbursement of cost of % 2.11 Crore with interest @ 9% per annum w.e-.f. date of filing of claim petition till the 

date of actual payment along with % 28.7 Crore towards remediation costs and reimbursement of arbitration costs 

of = 25 Lakh. The Company is exploring all possible legal options for challenging the said order. Apart from the 

said Order, no other material orders were passed by the Regulators, Courts and Tribunals against the Company. 

5. Fraud reporting by the Auditors. 

6. Maintenance of Cost Records as specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

7. Noinstance of One Time Settlement of loans availed from Banks/Financial Institutions. 

Your Directors further state that during the year under review, there were no cases filed pursuant to the Sexual 

Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 

8. |The company has paid all the statutory dues that were accrued during the reporting period. 

APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 

During the year under review, M/s. Bangur Exim Private Limited (now merged into the Company), had initiated Insol- 

vency Proceedings against its defaulting debtor namely M/s. Plumbers Choice Plastics Private Limited vide Company 

Petition — C. P. (IBC)-04-KOB-2024 for recovery of dues which remains pending as on 31st March, 2024. However, the 

defaulting debtor went into liquidation and M/s Jayshree Chemicals Limited (Merged entity of M/s Bangur Exim Private 

Limited) has submitted its pending claims as on 31st March 2024 vide its application dated 22nd March, 2025 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 

The internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements are commensurate with the size and nature of 

business of the Company. All transactions are authorised, recorded and reported correctly. Internal Audits and checks 

are carried out regularly. 

VIGIL MECHANISM 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Section 177 (9) of the Companies Act 2013, the Company has established Vigil 

(Whistle Blower) Mechanism which aims to provide a channel to the Directors and employees to report genuine con- 

cerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Codes of Conduct or policy. 
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The Company is committed to adhere to the highest standards of ethical, moral and legal conduct of business opera- 

tions and in order to maintain these standards, the Company encourages its employees who have genuine concerns 

about suspected misconduct to come forward and express these concerns without fear of punishment or unfair treat- 

ment. 

Directors’ Report 

The mechanism provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of directors and employees to avail of the mech- 

anism and also provide for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases. 

This neither releases employees from their duty of confidentiality in the course of their work nor can it be used as a route 

for raising malicious or unfounded allegations about a personal situation. 

STATUTORY AUDITORS, THEIR REPORT AND NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

In the Annual General Meeting held on 22nd September, 2022, M/s. AMK & Associates, Chartered Accountants having 

Firm Registration No. 327817E, were appointed as Statutory Auditors for the Company's financial years 2022-2023 to 

2026-2027. 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT 

In terms of Section 204 of the Act and the Rules made there under, Shri Arun Kumar Jaiswal, Practicing Company Secre- 

tary was appointed as Secretarial Auditor of the Company. The Report of the Secretarial Auditor is enclosed as Annex- 

ure-2 to this Report. The Report is self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments. 

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

Shri Virendraa Bangur, holding DIN 00237043, Director of the Company, retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General 

Meeting of the Company and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment. 

Shri Virendraa Bangur holding DIN 00237043, Non-Executive Director of the Company has been appointed as the Chair- 

man of the Company w.e.f. 12th November, 2024. 

Shri Shree Kumar Bangur holding DIN 00053237, Non-Executive and Chairman of the Company has tendered his resig- 

nation w.e.f. 11th November, 2024. The Directors place on records their appreciation for all the valuable advices given 

by Shri Shree Kumar Bangur during his tenure of office with the Company as its Chairman and Non-Executive Director. 

Shri Akash Ghuwalewala Company Secretary & Compliance Officer has resigned from the services of the Company w.ef. 

20th February, 2025 and in his place Mrs. Puja Guin is appointed as the Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the 

Company w.ef. 24th April, 2025. 

TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND 

All unclaimed dividends and all shares relating thereto have already been transferred to the Investor Education and Pro- 

tection Fund established by the Central Government in the Year 2018-19. 

FIXED DEPOSITS 

Your Company has not accepted any deposit from public in terms of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Management Discussion and Analysis comprising an overview of the financial results, operations / performance and 

future prospects of the Company is annexed and forms part of this Report. 

HUMAN RESOURCES 

Your Company treats its human resources as one of its most important assets. 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

The Company had no employee drawing remuneration specified under the Companies (Appointment and Remunera- 

tion of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, during the year under review. Accordingly, the particulars required under the 

above Rule have not been given. 
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Jayshree Chemicals Limited 

Directors’ Report 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

As per the Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regula- 

tions, 2015, a separate section on Corporate Governance practices followed by the Company together with a Certificate 

from the Company’s Auditors confirming compliance forms an integral part of this Report. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

Your Directors place on record their appreciation for employees at all levels, who contributed to the growth and perfor- 

mance of your Company. 

Your Directors also thank the clients, vendors, bankers, shareholders and advisors of the Company for their continued 

support. 

On behalf of the Board 

For Jayshree Chemicals Limited 

Regd. Office: 

14, N. S. Road Virendraa Bangur Rajesh Kumar Singhi 

Kolkata - 700 001 (Director) Executive Director & CFO 

Date: 24th April, 2025 (DIN: 00237043) (DIN: 01210804) 
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Annexure -1 

Directors’ Report 

Form AOC-2 

[Pursuant to Clause (h) of Sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) 

of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014] 

Disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in 

sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso 

thereto 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis: 

Jayshree Chemicals Limited has not entered into any contract or arrangement or transaction with its related parties 

which is not at arm's length during the financial year 2024-25. 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis 

(a) Name(s) of the related parties and nature of relationship: 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Name of the related party Relationship 

The Indra Company Ltd. Control of KMP 

Veer Enterprises Ltd. Control of KMP 

Name of the KMP Relationship 

Shri Shree Kumar Bangur Chairman & Director till 11-11-2024 

Shri Virendraa Bangur Chairman & Director from 12-11-2024 

Shri Rajesh Kumar Singhi Executive Director & CFO 

Shri Akash Ghuwalewala Company Secretary till 20-02-2025 

Smt. Arpita Chakraverti Saha Director 

Shri Rishi Bajoria Director 

Shri Krishna Kumar Kothari Director 

Name of the Relative of KMP Relationship 

Smt. Bharti Bangur Relative of KMP 
  

Note : KMP or Key Managerial Personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing 
and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise) 

of that entity. 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

b) Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ transactions c)Durationof  d) Salient terms e) Date(s) of 

the contracts/ —_ of the contracts approval by the 

arrangements/ or arrangements Board, if any 

transactions or transactions On different dates 

During the including the of Board meetings 
F.Y. 2024-25 value, if any held during the 

(Amt., < in Lakh) F.Y. 2023-24 

Remuneration Paid to KMP 

Remuneration paid to Shri Rajesh Kumar Singhi -Do- 24.00 -Do- 

Remuneration paid to Shri Akash Ghuwalewala till -Do- 9.74 -Do- 
20-02-2025 

Professional Fees Paid to Relative of KMP 

Professional Fees paid to Smt. Bharti Bangur -Do- 4.80 -Do- 

Directors Sitting Fees Paid to KMP 

Shri Shree Kumar Bangur -Do- 0.15 -Do- 

Shri Virendraa Bangur -Do- 0.30 -Do- 

Shri Krishna Kumar Kothari -Do- 0.50 -Do- 

Shri Rishi Bajoria -Do- 0.40 -Do- 

Smt. Arpita Chakraverti Saha -Do- 0.40 -Do- 
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Jayshree Chemicals Limited 

Directors’ Report 

b) Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ transactions c)Durationof  d) Salient terms 

the contracts/ of the contracts 

arrangements/ or arrangements 

e) Date(s) of 

approval by the 

Board, if any 

  

  

  

  

  

transactions or transactions On different dates 

During the including the of Board meetings 
F.Y. 2024-25 value, if any held during the 

(Amt., = in Lakh) F.Y. 2023-24 

Others 

Rent & other Paid-Veer Enterprises Ltd. (Rent end on -Do- 6.17 -Do- 

31.08.2024) 

Security Deposit Refund- Veer Enterprises Ltd. - 2.60 - 

Rent Paid-Indra Company Ltd. (w.e.f 01.09.2024) - 0.28 - 

Security Deposit Paid -The Indra Company Ltd. - 0.12 - 
  

Outstanding Balances: 
  

  

c) Amount paid as advances, if any: Nil 

Regd. Office: 

14, N. S. Road 

Kolkata - 700 001 
Date: 24th April, 2025 
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Annexure-2 

Directors’ Report 

Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To, 

The Members, 

Jayshree Chemicals Limited 

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 

good corporate practices by M/s Jayshree Chemicals Limited (CIN-L24119WB1962PLC218608) (hereinafter called 

the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the 

corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of M/s Jayshree Chemicals Limited books, papers, Minute Books, Forms and Returns filed and 

other records maintained by the Company, to the extent the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents 

and authorised representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, the explanations and clarifications given to us 

and the representations made by the Management, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the 

audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 has generally complied with the statutory provisions 

listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the 

extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

We have examined the books, papers, Minute Books, Forms and Returns filed and other records maintained by M/s 

Jayshree Chemicals Limited for the financial year ended on 31% March, 2025 according to the provisions of: 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made there under; 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules made there under; 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign 

Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 
(‘SEBI Act’):- 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011, 
as amended from time to time; 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as amended from 
time to time; 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as 

amended from time to time ; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period) 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 

2021: (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period) 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008:(Not 

applicable to the Company during the audit period) 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021: (Not applicable to 

the Company during the audit period) 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable to the 
Company during the audit period) 

Annual Report 2025 23 

s
y
i
o
d
a
y
 
A
1
0
3
N
}
e
1
5



Jayshree Chemicals Limited 

Directors’ Report 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 

1993: The Company has appointed M/s Niche Technologies Private Limited who provides share registration and 

related services, and 

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015. 

(vi) We have relied on the representations made by the Company and its Officers for systems and mechanism formed 

by the Company for compliances under other applicable Acts, Laws and Regulations to the Company. 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to Board and General 

Meetings. 

(ii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as 

amended. 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 

Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations: 

1. The status of the Company during the financial year has been that of a Listed Public Company. 

2. The Directors have complied with the disclosure requirements in respect of their eligibility of appointment. Their 

being an Independent Compliance Code of Business Conduct & Ethics for Directors and Management Personnel. 

3. The Directors have complied with the requirements as to disclosure of interests and concerns in contracts and 

arrangements, shareholdings/debenture holdings and directorships in other companies and interests in other 

entities. 

4. The Company has already satisfied all the charges on the assets of the Company. (Despite the Company has paid 

the whole amounts of Rs. 388500/- to the Charge Holder and the Company is having “No Objection Certificate” 

from the Charge Holder, still a charge of Rs. 3,88,500/- is showing on the MCA site). 

5. All registrations under the various state and local laws as applicable to the Company are valid as on the date of 

report. 

6. The Company has paid all its statutory dues and satisfactory arrangements have been made for arrears of any such 

dues. 

7. The Company (listed on Bombay Stock Exchange Limited) has complied with the provisions of SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

8. The Company has provided a list of statutes in addition to the laws as mentioned above and it has been observed 

that there are proper systems. 

9. Satisfactory Compliance is being done by the Company with respect to redressal of Customer Grievances. 

In respect of other laws specifically applicable to the Company, we have relied on information/records produced by the 

Company during the course of our audit and the reporting is limited to that extent. 

We further report 

That, the compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws such as direct and indirect tax laws and maintenance 
of financial records and books of accounts have not been reviewed in this Audit since the same have been subject to 

review by the statutory financial auditors, tax auditors, and other designated professionals. 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Director, Non-Executive 

Directors and Independent Directors. During the year under review Shri Virendraa Bangur holding DIN 00237043, Non- 

Executive Director of the Company has been appointed as the Chairman of the Company w.ef. 12 November, 2024. 

Also, Shri Shree Kumar Bangur holding DIN 00053237, Non-Executive and Chairman of the Company has tendered his 
resignation w.e.f. 11% November, 2024. 

Adequate notice(s) have been given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings and Committee Meetings, agenda 
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and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and in case of shorter notice, compliance as 
required under the Act has been made by the Company and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information 

and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

Directors’ Report 

Majority decision is carried through and proper systems are in place which facilitates/ensures to capture and record, the 

dissenting member's views, if any, as part of the minutes. During the period, all the decisions in the Board Meetings were 

carried unanimously and no dissenting views have been recorded. 

We further report that based on the information provided and the representation made by the Company and also 

on the review of the compliance certificates / reports taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company, in our 

opinion there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the 

Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

We further report that during the audit period there were no specific events/ actions which have a major bearing on 

the Company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. 

For JAISWAL A & CO. 

Arun Kumar Jaiswal 

Practicing Company Secretary 

Proprietor 

Mem. No.29827; C.P. No- 12281 

Place: Kolkata UDIN NO- A029827G000196587 

Date: 24.04.2025 Peer Review Cert. No.: 2636/2022 

NOTE- This report is to be read out with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure I and forms an integral 

part of this report. 
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To, 

Annexure -! 

TO THE SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT OF 

JAYSHREE CHEMICALS LIMITED 

For the financial year ended 31st March, 2025 

The Members, 

JAYSHREE CHEMICALS LIMITED 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of Secretarial Records is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. Our responsibility is 

to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

2. We have followed the Audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 

correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct 

facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reason- 

able basis for our opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Compa- 

ny. 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance of Laws, Rules and 

Regulations and happening of events etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable Laws, Rules, Regulations and Standards is the 

responsibilities of the management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

For JAISWAL A & CO. 

Arun Kumar Jaiswal 

Practicing Company Secretary 

Proprietor 

Mem. No.29827; C.P. No- 12281 

Place: Kolkata UDIN NO- A029827G0001 96587 

Date: 24.04.2025 Peer Review Cert. No.: 2636/2022 
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Management Discussion and Analysis Report 

a) INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS 

The world market is anticipated to grow at a rate of 3.3 percent in both the FY. 2025 and FY. 2026, which is well below 

the average historical growth rate of 3.7% . The pace of expansion is low by historical standards, owing to both near-term 

factors, such as still-high borrowing costs and withdrawal of fiscal support, and longer-term effects from the COVID-19 

pandemic and Russia’s invasion of Ukraine; weak growth in productivity; and increasing geo-economic fragmentation. 

Global headline inflation is expected to fall from an annual average of 6.8% in 2023 to 5.9% in 2024 and 4.5% in 2025, 

with advanced economies returning to their inflation targets sooner than emerging market and developing economies. 

The latest forecast for global growth five years from now has been pegged at 3.1% which is lowest in decades. Despite 

these challenges, however, major economies except for Europe has managed to avoid recession and major emerging 

market economies did not suffer the jolts as was anticipated. However, the growth rate and market sentiments in the 

USA remained a major concern for economies around the world as they had felt the tremors for the same. In the middle 

of this environment, the Company, is operating in chemical trading and wind power segments and had a year full of 

challenges. Nevertheless, it anticipates improving its performance in the ongoing financial year. 

b) OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS 

The Company which began its Chemical Trading Business in 2022 has expanded its range of offerings by diversifying 

into various chemicals. The Company has expanded its trading operations to include Crop Nutrient Chemicals thereby 

reducing its reliance on Formic Acid which was a major revenue contributor in the previous financial year. The Company 

holds a positive outlook on its wind power generation business, expecting a boost from the anticipated recovery of 

pending dues from power discoms. We are exploring one or two more products in the rubber industries so that we can 

have more focus in Kerala. 

However, both business verticals of Company are subject to inherent business risks associated with them. The chemical 

business is susceptible to price and demand fluctuations, international currency fluctuations and cheaper imports from 

China. The power business may suffer delayed payments from power discoms which could impact the profitability of 

the Company. The suppliers are increasing in the market rapidly hence effecting the price and competitiveness of the 

products. 

Competition from others suppliers put pressures to keep costs low. Hence upgrading infrastructure and adopting effi- 

cient processes are crucial for maintaining cost-competitiveness. 

c) PRODUCTWISE PERFORMANCE 

In the wind power segment and Trading Segment the Company has earned a revenue of Rs. 1688.61 Lakhs. 

d) OUTLOOK 

The Company is highly focused on increasing and expanding its present line of business by securing new clients and 

orders to increase its operational efficiency and performance. 

e) RISK & CONCERNS 

The primary risk for the Company is associated with the volatility in the domestic markets, any kind of uncertainty which 

might prevail in the markets, high competition because of new entrants in the market and cheaper imports, inability to 

secure new clients or any new implementation of rules or regulations which might affect the functioning of the business 

in long run. However, the Company is taking all possible measure to cope with all these challenges by continuous efforts 

at cost optimization, process improvements, diversification of products and improving efficiencies. Further, the compa- 

ny is also monitoring the market trends and adapting to changing conditions as needed 
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Jayshree Chemicals Limited 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report 

(f) INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

The Company maintains a robust system of internal controls to ensure that all transactions are authorized, recorded 

and reported correctly. Internal audits and checks are carried out regularly by Internal Auditors, an independent firm of 

Chartered Accounts. An Audit Committee headed by an independent and non- executive Director is in place to review 

the systems continuously. 

(g) FINANCIAL & OPERATING PERFORMANCE 

This has already has been discussed in the Directors Report. 

(h) HUMAN RESOURCES/ INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS FRONTS 

The Company maintained a positive and cordial relations with its employees and any issues that arise are solved across 

the table in a very congenial atmosphere. There were 10 employees as on 31st March 2025. 

(i) DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES (I.E. CHANGE OF 25% OR MORE AS COMPARED TO THE IMMEDIATELY 

PREVIOUS FINANCIAL YEAR) IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS, ALONG WITH DETAILED EXPLANATIONS 

This has been discussed in the Notes to Financial Statements. 

On behalf of the Board 

For Jayshree Chemicals Limited 

Regd. Office: 

14, N. S. Road Virendraa Bangur Rajesh Kumar Singhi 

Kolkata - 700 001 (Director) Executive Director & CFO 

Date: 24th April, 2025 (DIN: 00237043) (DIN: 01210804) 
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Report on Corporate Governance 

The Company's Report on Corporate Governance for the year ended 31st March, 2025 is given hereunder:- 

1. Brief statement on the Company’s philosophy on Code of Governance 

The Company’s philosophy is to strive for optimum performance at all levels. The basic Corporate Governance 

practices which the Company follows for achieving the same are as under:- 

* Fair and transparent business practices; 

* Effective management and control by the Board; 

* Monitoring of Executive performance; 

* Compliance of Laws; 

* Independent manner of operation of the Board; 

* — Accountability for performance; 

* Monitoring of Business Risk. 

Code of conduct for the Directors and Management 

The Company has adopted Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (“the Code”) which is applicable to the Board of 

Directors and Senior Management Team (one level below the Board of Directors) of the Company. The Board of 

Directors and the members of Senior Management Team are required to affirm annual compliance of this Code. The 

Code requires Directors and Employees to act honestly, fairly, ethically and with integrity, conduct themselves in 

professional, courteous and respectful manner. The Code is displayed on the Company website. 

Board of Directors 

The Board of Directors of the Company as on 31st March, 2025, comprised of Five Directors, consisting of one Non- 

Executive Chairman (Promoter), one Whole-time Director and three Independent Directors. 

During the year 2024-25, 4 (Four) Board Meetings of the Company were held on 16th May, 2024, 08th August, 2024, 

11th November, 2024 and 14th February, 2025.The composition of Directors and attendance at the Board Meetings 

during the year and the last Annual General Meeting and also number of other Directorships and Committee 

Memberships are given hereunder:- 

  

SI. Name of Director Category of No. of No. of Attendance Noofother Nameofother No.of other Board 

No. Directorship Board Board atlastAGM _ Director- listed entities Committees of 

Meetings Meetings ships held where Directorship which Member/ 

heldduring Attended (*) is held and the Chairperson 

the tenure category of (**) 

Directorship 

1 ShriShreeKumar = Chairman & 3 3 Yes 6 West Coast 1 

Bangur Non-Executive Paper Mills (Member) 

Director - Ltd. (Chairman 

Promoter and Managing 

Group (Till Director) 

11.11.2024) Andhra Paper 

Ltd. (Chairman 

and Non- 
Executive 

Director) 
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SI. Name of Director Category of No. of No. of Attendance Noofother Nameofother No.of other Board 

No. Directorship Board Board atlastAGM _ Director- listed entities Committees of 

Meetings Meetings ships held where Directorship which Member/ 

heldduring Attended (*) is held and the Chairperson 

the tenure category of (**) 

Directorship 

2. ShriVirendraa Chairman & 4 4 Yes 8 West Coast 3 

Bangur Non-Executive Paper Mills (Chairperson) 

Director - Ltd. (Executive 1 

Promoter Director) (Member) 

Group (W.e.f Andhra Paper 

12.11.2024) Ltd. (Non- 

Executive 

Director) 

Taparia Tools 

Ltd. (Non- 

Executive 

Director) 

3. ShriKrishna Independent 4 4 Yes 1 Nil Nil 

Kumar Kothari Non-Executive 

Director 

4 — Shri Rajesh Wholetime 4 4 Yes 5 Nil Nil 

Kumar Singhi Director 

designated 

as Director 

(Commercial) 

and CFO 

5 ShriRishi Bajoria Independent 4 3 No 2 Wires Fabriks 4 (Member) 

Non-Executive SA Ltd. 

Director (Independent 

Director) 

6 Smt. Arpita Independent 4 4 Yes Nil Nil Nil 

Chakraverti Saha Non-Executive 

Director 

  

Shri Shree Kumar Bangur and Shri Virendraa Bangur are related to each other being the father and son respectively. 

Save and except them, no Director is related to any other Director of the Company. 

(*) Excludes the Directorship held in the Company, private limited companies and companies registered under 

Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

(**) Includes only Chairmanship/Membership held in Audit Committee and Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee 

of companies excluding held in the Company, private limited companies and companies registered under Section 

8 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Declaration given by the Independent Directors under Section 149(7) of the Act 

All Independent Directors of the Company have given their declarations to the Company that they meet the 

criteria of independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) 

of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015. In the opinion of the Board, the 

Independent Directors of the Company are persons of integrity, expertise and experience and duly qualified to hold 

such positions. 

During the year under review, the Independent Directors met on 14th February, 2025 without the presence of Non- 

Independent Directors and members of the Management and, inter alia:- 

(i) reviewed the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole; 
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(ii) reviewed the performance of the Chairperson of the Company, taking into account the views of Executive 
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(iii) assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company management and 

the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively & reasonably perform their duties. 

All Independent Directors were present at the meeting. The Independent Directors present at the meeting 

deliberated on the above and expressed their satisfaction. 

  

  

  

  

Names of Directors No. of Meetings held during the No. of Meetings 

tenure of Membership attended 

Shri Krishna Kumar Kothari 1 1 

Shri Rishi Bajoria 1 1 

Smt. Arpita Chakraverti Saha 1 1 

Audit Committee 

As on 31st March, 2025, the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company comprised of Shri Krishna 

Kumar Kothari as Chairman and Shri Rishi Bajoria, Smt. Arpita Chakraverti Saha and Shri Rajesh Kumar Singhi as its 

members. The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee are as per Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

the provisions of the Regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 

2015. 

During the year, four Meetings of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company were held on 16th 

May, 2024, 08th August, 2024, 11th November, 2024; 14th February, 2025. The details of the attendance at the said 

Meetings are given hereunder:- 

  

  

  

  

Names of Directors No. of Meetings held during the No. of Meetings 

tenure of Membership attended 

Shri Krishna Kumar Kothari 4 4 

Shri Rishi Bajoria 4 3 

Smt. Arpita Chakraverti Saha 4 4 

Shri Rajesh Kumar Singhi 4 4 
  

The Chairman of Committee attended the last Annual General Meeting of the Company. 

Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

As on 31st March, 2025, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Company comprised of Shri Virendraa 

Bangur as its Chairman, Shri Rajesh Kumar Singhi and Smt. Arpita Chakraverti Saha as its members. 

During the year, one Meeting of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee was held on 14th February, 2025. The 

details of the attendance at the said Meeting are given hereunder:- 

  

  

  

Names of Directors No. of Meetings held during the No. of Meetings 

tenure of Membership attended 

Shri Virendraa Bangur 1 1 

Shri Rajesh Kumar Singhi 1 1 

Smt. Arpita Chakraverti Saha 1 1 
  

Shri Akash Ghuwalewala, was the Company Secretary and the Compliance Officer of the Company, he also acted as 

the Nodal Officer of the Company for IEPF compliances till his resignation on and from 20th February, 2025 (end of 

business hours). There was no complaint from any Shareholder during the year under review and no complaint was 

pending at the end of the financial year. 

This Committee was constituted to specifically look into the shareholder's and investor's complaints on matters 

relating to transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of dividend, payment of unclaimed 

dividends etc. In addition, the Committee also looked into matters that can facilitate better investor services and 
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relations. The Board was kept apprised of all the major developments on investors’ issues through various reports 

and statements furnished to the Board from time to time throughout the year. 

The Share Department of the Company and the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, Niche Technologies Pvt. Ltd. 

attend to all grievances of the shareholders and investors received directly or through SEBI, Stock Exchange and 

Registrar of Companies etc. 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

As on 31st March, 2025, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company 

comprised of Shri Krishna Kumar Kothari as its Chairman, Shri Virendraa Bangur and Shri Rishi Bajoria as its members. 

The Committee has power to regulate its Meetings and proceedings. The Remuneration Policy relating to the 

remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees form part of the Directors Report. 

During the year, Two Meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors of the 

Company were held on 16th May, 2024 and 14th February, 2025. The details of the attendance at the said Meeting 

are given hereunder:- 

  

  

  

Names of Directors No. of Meetings held during the No. of Meetings 

tenure of Membership attended 

Shri Virendraa Bangur 2 2 

Shri Krishna Kumar Kothari 2 2 

Shri Rishi Bajoria 2 2 
  

The details of remuneration of the Executive and Non-Executive Directors during the year ended 31st March, 2025 

are as under:- 

i) Wholetime Director designated as Director (Commercial) 

Name: Shri Rajesh Kumar Singhi 

Description : Director (Commercial) 

Salary: & 12,53,724/- 

Benefits 

Allowances & Perquisites : = 9,95,900/- 

Bonus: -- 

Pension: -- 

Fixed Component 

Contributions to = 1,50,444/- 

Provident & Superannuation Funds : 

Performance linked Incentive 

Service Contract 11th February, 2024 to 10th February, 2027. 

Notice Period 3 Months 

Severance Fee Nil 

Stock Options (®) -- 

Total: = 24,00,068/- 

ii) Non-Executive Directors 

Non-Executive Directors (including Independent Directors) are not entitled for any remuneration other than 

the sitting fees for attending Meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company or a Committee thereof. 
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The details of sitting fees paid are as under:- 

  

  

  

  

  

  

Name of Director Sitting Fees (*) 

Shri Shree Kumar Bangur 15,000/- 

Shri Virendraa Bangur 30,000/- 

Shri Krishna Kumar Kothari 50,000/ 

Shri Rishi Bajoria 40,000/- 

Smt. Arpita Chakraverti Saha 40,000/- 

Total: 1,75,000/- 
  

ANNUAL EVALUATION OF PERFORMANCE: 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 

Regulations, 2015, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has laid down the criteria for performance evaluation 

on the basis of which the Board has carried out evaluation of its own performance, the performance of Board Committees 

and of the Independent Directors individually. 

During the financial year, the Board of Directors adopted a formal mechanism for evaluation of its performance as well 

as that of its Committees and individual Directors including Chairman of the Board. Through a structured evaluation 

process covering various aspects of the Board’s functioning such as governance issues, performance of specific 

duties and obligations, experience and competencies. Separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance 

of individual Directors including the Chairman of the Board based on the parameters such as attendance at Board / 

Committee Meetings, contribution at Board / Committee Meetings and guidance given to Management and also based 

on questionnaire and feedback from all the Directors as a whole, Committee and self-evaluation. 

The performance evaluation of the Board was carried out based on the following: 

> Board's structure and composition 

> Establishment and Delineation of responsibilities to Committees 

> — Efficacy of communication with external stakeholders 

> — Effectiveness of Board process, information and functioning. 

FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

The Company is required to conduct the Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors (IDs) interms of Regulation 

25(7) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 to familiarize them with the Company, 

their roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company and various legal updates and notifications under Companies Act, 

2013, Listing Regulations, Guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of India and other statutes applicable to the Company. 

The details of such Familiarization Programme for Directors may be viewed at the website of the Company at www. 

jayshreechemicals.com/JCL_Familiarization-Programme-for-Website-Updation.pdf 

7. Annual General Meetings 

The last three Annual General Meetings of the Company were held as under:- 

  

  

  

Financial Year ended Date Time Venue 

31-03-2024 07-08-2024 12:15PM. — Through Video conference 

31-03-2023 09-08-2023 12:30PM. — Through Video conference 

31-03-2022 22-09-2022 3 PM. Through Video conference 
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8. 

34 

Disclosures 

vi. 

Related Party Transactions 

The Company has not entered into any transaction of material nature with the Promoters, the Directors or 

the Management, Key Managerial Personnel, their subsidiaries or relatives, etc. that may have any potential 

conflict with the interest of the Company. 

Compliances by the Company 

The Company has complied with the requirements of the BSE, SEBI and other statutory authorities on all 

matters related to capital markets during the last three years. No penalties or strictures have been imposed on 

the Company by the Stock Exchange or SEBI or any other statutory authorities relating to the above. 

Whistle Blower policy 

Pursuant to Rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and the Listing Regulations, 

Whistle Blower Policy (Vigil Mechanism) has been formulated with a view to provide a mechanism for employees 

and Directors of the Company to approach the Wholetime Director or the Chairman of the Audit Committee of 

the Board to make a Protected Disclosure of malpractices and events which have taken place or suspected to 

take place in relation to matters concerning the Company only. 

Further during the financial year 2024-25 no personnel has been denied access to the Wholetime Director or 

the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Board to make a Protected Disclosure. 

Risk Management Framework 

The Company has a Risk Management Policy which lays down the framework for identification and mitigation 

of various risks. The specific objectives of the Risk Management Policy are to ensure that all the current and 

future material risk exposures of the Company are identified, assessed, quantified, appropriately mitigated and 

managed, to establish a framework for the Company’s risk management process. 

The Risk Management Framework emphasises proper analyzing and understanding the underlying risks before 

undertaking any transaction. This enables a proper assessment of all risks and ensures that the transactions 

and processes conform to the Company's risk appetite and regulatory requirements. 

The Risk Management Policy is discussed at the meeting of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors. The 

management accepts the suggestions with regard to mitigation of risks that may arise in future. Further, in the 

opinion of the Board, there are no existing factors which threaten the existence of the Company. 

Prevention of Insider Trading 

The Company has its Code of Internal Procedure and Conduct for Directors /Officers / Designated Employees 

framed in line with the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time, 

which is aimed to prevent any insider trading and applicable to all the designated persons who are expected 

to have access to the unpublished price sensitive information relating to the Company. The Company has laid 

down the guidelines, which advises them on procedures to be followed and disclosures to be made, while 

dealing in shares of the Company. As per Regulation 3(5) of the said Regulations, the Company maintains a 

Structured Digital Database internally with adequate internal controls and checks. 

CEO/CFO Certification 

The Wholetime Director and Chief Financial Officer of the Company gives an annual certificate on financial 

reporting and internal controls to the Board in terms of Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015. The Wholetime Director and Chief Financial Officer of the 

Company also gives quarterly certificate on financial results while placing the results before the Board in terms 

of Regulation 33(2)(a) of the said Regulations. 
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vii. Reconciliation of Share Capital 

As required by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), quarterly audit of the Company’s share capital 

is being carried out by a Practicing Company Secretary to reconcile the total admitted capital with National 

Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) (collectively 

Depositories) and held in physical form, with the total issued and listed capital. The Certificate confirming the 

same is submitted to BSE Limited on a quarterly basis and is also placed before the Board of Directors. 

vii. Certificate from Company Secretary in Practice regarding appointment and continuation of directors 

The Company has obtained the Certificate from the Practicing Company Secretary certifying that none of the 

directors of the Company are debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of 

Company by SEBI / MCA or any such authority. 

Means of Communication 

The Quarterly /half yearly/ yearly financial results during the year under review were published in English in the 

‘Financial Express’ and in Bengali in the ‘Arthik Lipi; both circulated in Kolkata where the Registered Office of the 

Company was situated. The results are displayed on the Company's website www.jayshreechemicals.com but are 

not sent individually to the Shareholders. No separate presentations were made to institutional investors or the 

analysts. 

General Shareholder Information 

Annual General Meeting : 

Date : 10th June, 2025 

Time : 12:15 PM. 

Venue : Video Conferencing (“VC")/ Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM") 

i) (a) Financial year : 2025-26 

(b) Financial Calendar : 

The Financial Calendar for the year 2025-26 (Provisional) is as under :- 

  

  

Results for the first quarter ending 30th June, 2025 By middle of August, 2025 

Results for the second quarter ending 30th September, 2025 By middle of November, 2025 

Results for the third quarter ending 31st December, 2025 By middle of February, 2026 
  

Results (Audited) for the Financial year ending 31st March, 2026 _ By end of May, 2026 

Annual General Meeting for the year ending 31st March, 2026 By end of September, 2026. 
  

9
2
/
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2
 

  

ii) Dates of Book Closure: The Register of Members and the Share Transfer 

Books of the Company will remain closed from 4th June, 2025 to 10th June, 
2025 both days inclusive, for the purpose of the Annual General Meeting of 

the Company to be held on 10th June, 2025. 

iii) | Dividend Payment Date: No Dividend is proposed. 

iv) Listing on Stock Exchange: BSE Ltd. 
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Fort, Mumbai - 400001 

Annual Listing Fees to the BSE Ltd. for the year ended 31st March, 2025 has 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

been paid. 

v) Stock Code: Name of Stock Security Demat 

Exchange Code ISIN 

BSE Ltd. 506520 INE693E01016 

vi) Market Price Data: The High and Low prices in each month in the Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. 

(BSE) at which the Company's Shares are listed are given hereunder :- 
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Price per Share 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Month High (®) Low (%) 

April, 2024 13.40 8.95 

May, 2024 10.65 9.00 
June, 2024 10.10 8.36 

July, 2024 9.75 9.00 
August, 2024 10.49 8.46 

September, 2024 10.49 8.80 

October, 2024 10.39 7.79 

November, 2024 9.60 8.26 

December, 2024 12.00 8.76 

January, 2025 10.00 7.57 

February, 2025 9.37 7.10 

March, 2025 8.35 6.87 

vii) Share price performance The Company's Share prices at the BSE Ltd. are given hereunder :- 

in comparison to broad- On jst April, 2024 : % 8.95 per Share 

based Indices : On 31st March, 2025 :% 7.15 per Share 

Change : (-20.11%) 

Indices (BSE Sensex) On 1st April, 2024 : 73,968.62 

(Opening) 

On 31st March, 2025 : 77,414.92 

(Closing) 

Change :4.66 % 

viii) Registrars and Share Niche Technologies Private Ltd. is acting as the Registrars of the Company for 

Transfer Agents : both physical and dematerialized form of Shares. The address of the above 

Registrars is given hereunder : 
  

Niche Technologies Private Ltd. 

3A, Auckland Place, 7th Floor, Room No. 7A & 7B, Kolkata-700017 
  

Telephone no.: (033) 2280 6616/ 6617/ 6618 

Fax No. 033-2280 6619 
Email : nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com 
  

(ix) Share Transfer System: SEBI vide its circular dated 25th January 2022, has mandated that listed 
companies shall issue the securities in dematerialized form only, in order to 
enhance ease of dealing in securities markets by investors, for transactions 

including Issue of duplicate securities certificate, claim from unclaimed 
suspense account, renewal / exchange of securities certificate, endorsement, 

sub-division/splitting of securities certificate, consolidation of securities 

certificates/folios, transmission and transposition of shares. Accordingly, 
Shareholders are requested to make service requests by submitting a 

duly filled and signed Form ISR - 4, the format of which is available on the 

Company's website. The details of transmission approved by the delegates 

are noted by the Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee. 
The Company has signed necessary agreements with two depositories 

currently functional in India viz. National Securities Depository Limited & 
Central Depository Services (India) Limited. The transfer of shares in electronic 

mode need not be approved by the Company. 
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a) Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March, 2025 is as under :- 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Category No. of Percentage of 
Shares held Shareholding 

Promoters 1,35,68,183 46.27 

Mutual Funds / UTI 200 0.00 

Banks, Financial Institutions and Insurance 2,08,051 0.71 
Companies 

Private Corporate Bodies 3,36,256 1.15 

Indian Public 1,46,33,131 49.90 

NRIs / OCBs 5,39,626 1.84 

ADRs/ GDRs - - 

IEPF Suspense Account 38,160 0.13 

Total: 2,93,26,457 100.00 

b) Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2025 is as under :- 

No. of Equity Shares held Shareholders Shares 

Nos. % Nos. % 

1 to 500 7891 72.0639 940246 3.2061 

501 to 1000 1251 11.4247 1065121 3.6319 

1001 to 5000 1369 12.5023 3344896 11.4057 

5001 to 10000 223 2.0365 1695946 5.7830 

10001 to 50000 170 1.5525 3499633 11.9334 

50001 to 100000 16 0.1461 1212548 4.1347 

100001 and above 30 0.2740 17568067 59.9052 

Total : 10950 100.00 29326457 100.00 

c) Details of Shares held by the Directors are as under :- 

Names No. of Shares held Percentage 

Shri Shree Kumar Bangur 4,37,500 1.492 

Shri Virendraa Bangur 4,92,500 1.679 
  

xi) |Dematerialisation of Shares and Liquidity : As on 31st March, 2025, 99.80% of the Company’s 

total Shares representing 2,92,72,030 Shares were 

held in dematerialised form and the balance 0.19% 

representing 54,427 Shares were in physical form. 
  

xii) Outstanding GDR/ADRs/Warrants or any converti- 

ble instruments, conversion date and likely impact 

on equity: 

The Company has not issued any GDR/ADRs. etc. 

  

xiii) Plant Location: The Company does not have any Plant.   

xiv) Addresses for correspondence: 1. Corporate Office: 

31, Chowringhee Road, Kolkata-700016 
  

2. Niche Technologies Private Limited 

3A, Auckland Place, 7th Floor, 

Room No. 7A & 7B, Kolkata-700017 
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11. Non-Mandatory Requirements 

i) |The Board: The Board of Directors of the Company has not yet decided on maintenance of Chairman’s office. 

ii) | Shareholder Rights: As the quarterly and half yearly financial performance are published in the news papers 

and are also posted on the Company's website, the Board of Directors of the Company has not decided on 

sending these and summary of significant events to each household of shareholders. 

iii) Audit qualifications: The Company's financial statements for the Financial Year 2024-25 does not contain any 

audit qualification. 

iv) Separate Posts of Chairman and CEO: The Chairman of the Board is a Non-executive Director and his position 

is separate from that of the Executive Director & CFO. 

v) Reporting of Internal Auditor: The Internal Auditors report to the Audit Committee. 

On behalf of the Board 

For Jayshree Chemicals Limited 

Regd. Office: 

14, N. S. Road Virendraa Bangur Rajesh Kumar Singhi 

Kolkata - 700 001 (Director) Executive Director & CFO 

Date : 24th April, 2025 (DIN: 00237043) (DIN: 01210804) 

  

TO WHOMSOEVER IT MAY CONCERN 

|, Rajesh Kumar Singhi, Director (Commercial) of the Company, do hereby declare that all the Board Members and 

Senior Management personnel of the Company have affirmed their compliance on an annual basis with the Code 

of Conduct as laid down by the Company pursuant to the requirements of Regulations 26(3) of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

Regd. Office Rajesh Kumar Singhi 

14, N.S. Road, Kolkata - 700 001 Executive Director & CFO 

Date: 24th April, 2025 (DIN: 01210804) 
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WHOLETIME DIRECTOR & CFO CERTIFICATION 

To 

The Board of Directors 

Jayshree Chemicals Ltd. 

We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement of Jayshree Chemicals Ltd. for the year 

ended on 31st March, 2025 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that; 

(a) i) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 

statements that might be misleading; 

ii) | These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance 

with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

(b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the 

Financial Year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the Company’s code of conduct. 

(c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we 

have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting 

and have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such 

internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps taken or proposed to be taken to rectify these 

deficiencies. 

(d) We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee: 

i) significant changes, if any, in internal control over financial reporting during the Financial Year; 

ii) significant changes, if any, in accounting policies made during the Financial Year and that the same have 

been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and 

iii) instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware or the involvement therein, if any, of the 

management or an employee having a significant role in the Company's internal control system over 

financial reporting. 

Regd. Office Rajesh Kumar Singhi 

14, N. S. Road, Kolkata - 700 001 Executive Director & CFO 

Date: 24th April, 2025 (DIN: 01210804) 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

To the members of 

Jayshree Chemicals Limited 

We, AMK & Associates, Chartered Accountants, the Statutory Auditors of Jayshree Chemicals Limited (“the 

Company”), have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by the Company, for the year 

ended on 31 March 2025, as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and paras C 

and D of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the Listing 

Regulations). 

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY 

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. This responsibility 
includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control and procedures to ensure compliance 

with the conditions of the Corporate Governance stipulated in the Listing Regulations. 

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY 

Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company 

for ensuring compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression 

of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 

We have examined the books of account and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Company 

for the purposes of providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with Corporate Governance requirements 

by the Company. 

We have carried out an examination of the relevant records of the Company in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Certification of Corporate Governance issued by the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of India 

(the ICAI), the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act 2013, in so far as 

applicable for the purpose of this certificate and as per the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special 

Purposes (Revised 2016) issued by the ICAI which requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the 

Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI. 

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality 

Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and 

Related Services Engagements. 

OPINION 

Based on our examination of the relevant records and according to the information and explanations provided 

to us and the representations provided by the Management, we certify that the Company has complied with the 

conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) 

and paras C and D of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations during the year ended 31 March 2025. 

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency 
or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

For AMK & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN 327817E 

Bhupendra Kumar Bhutia 

Partner 

Kolkata M.No. 059363 

24th April 2025 UDIN: 25059363BMGABN8683 
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 
[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10) (i) of the SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015] 

To, 

The Members of, 

Jayshree Chemicals Limited 

31 Chowringhee Road 

Kolkata-700016 

| have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of 

Jayshree Chemicals Limited having CIN L24119WB1962PLC218608 and having its registered office at 14, N. 

S. Road, 1st Floor, Suite No. 101, Kolkata-700001 (“hereinafter referred to as the Company”), produced before 

me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with this Regulation 34(3) read 

with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors 

Indentification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations 

furnished to me by the Company and its officers, | hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the 

Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2025 have been debarred or disqualified 

from being appointed or continuing as Directors of Company by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such authorities. 

  

  

  

  

  

  

Sr. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in the 

No. Company 

1 Shree Kumar Bangur 00053237 01/08/1985 

2 Virendraa Bangur 00237043 05/06/2003 

3 Krishna Kumar Kothari 00233174 21/05/2018 

4 Rajesh Kumar Singhi 01210804 11/02/2021 

5 Rishi Bajoria 00501157 28/07/2022 

6 Arpita Chakraverti Saha 09683558 28/07/2022 
  

Ensuring the eligibility of appointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the 

management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on this based on our verification. This 

certificate is neither an assurance as to the failure or viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness 

with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

For JAISWAL A & CO. 

Arun Kumar Jaiswal 

Practicing Company Secretary 

Proprietor 

Mem. No.29827; C.P. No- 12281 

Place : Kolkata UDIN NO- A029827G000199557 

Date : 24.04.2025 Peer Review Cert. No.: 2636/2022 
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Jayshree Chemicals Limited 

Independent Auditor’s Report 

To the Members of 

Jayshree Chemicals Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS financial statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the Ind AS financial statements of Jayshree Chemicals Limited (“the Company”) which comprise the 

balance sheet as at 31st March 2025, the statement of Profit and Loss, statement of changes in equity and statement 

of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of significant 

accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS 

financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 

conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 

31, 2025, and its loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the 

Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities 

for the Audit of the Ind AS financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance 

with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements 

that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and 

the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the Ind 

AS financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Ind AS 

financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these 

matters. 

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information obtained at the date of 

this auditor's report is information included in the Annual report but does not include the financial statements and our 

auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assur- 

ance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 

so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge 

obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report, we 

conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. 

We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS financial statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 

Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 
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position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting 

principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This 

responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act 

for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selec- 

tion and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 

controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant 

to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Independent Auditor's Report 

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to contin- 

ue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis 

of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 

alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS financial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a whole are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs 

will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 

users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 

throughout the audit. We also: 

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or 

error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 

fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, mis- 

representations, or the override of internal control. 

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are ap- 

propriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies act, 2013, we are also responsible for 

expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the 

operating effectiveness of such controls. 

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 

related disclosures made by management. 

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 

the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 

significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertain- 

ty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial 

statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 

evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Com- 

pany to cease to continue as a going concern. 

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including the disclo- 

sures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner 

that achieves fair presentation. 
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Jayshree Chemicals Limited 

Independent Auditor's Report 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 

of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify dur- 

ing our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical require- 

ments regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably 

be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 

significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. 

We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter 

or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report be- 

cause the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of 

such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

(1) As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of In- 

dia in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure-A’ a statement 

on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

(2) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 

belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 

from our examination of those books. 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are 

in agreement with the books of account. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified un- 

der Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

(e) Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March 2025 taken on record 

by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March 2025 from being appointed as 

a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the 

operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements 

of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuner- 

ation paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 

of the Act. 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according 

to the explanations given to us: 

i. | The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position except as 

stated in note no. 30(1)(i). 

ii, The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were 

any material foreseeable losses. 
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Independent Auditor's Report 

iv. 

(iv) 

Place: Kolkata 

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 

Fund by the Company. 

(a) The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, other than as dis- 

closed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from 

borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any 

other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, 

whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly 

lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 

Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

The management has represented, that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, other than as 

disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any per- 

son(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether 

recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest 

in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 

(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Ben- 

eficiaries; and 

Based on audit procedures that has considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, 

nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub- 

clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement. 

No dividend has declared or paid by the Company during the financial year. 

Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an accounting software 

for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended on 31st March 2025 which has a feature 

of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant 

transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any 

instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. 

As per the proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 which is applicable from April 1, 

2023, the Company has preserved audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention for the 

previous financial year ended March 31, 2024. 

For AMK & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 327817E 

Bhupendra Kumar Bhutia 

Partner 

Membership No. 059363 

Date: 24th April 2025 UDIN: 25059363BMGAB09452 
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Jayshree Chemicals Limited 

Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report 

Annexure to the Independent Auditors’ Report to the Board of Directors of Jayshree Chemicals Limited referred 

to in paragraph 1 of Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements in our Report of even date. 

(i) (a) 

CD )) 

(A) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and 

situation of Property, Plant and Equipment. 

(B) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible assets. 

The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals 

and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

Based on the examination of the registered sale deed / transfer deed / conveyance deed provided to us, we re- 

port that title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than immovable properties where the Company is 

the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the Company) are disclosed in the financial 

statements are held in the name of the company as on the balance sheet date. 

The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment assets, during the year, hence report- 

ing under clause (i)(d) of the Order is not applicable. 

The Company does not have any Right of Use assets or intangible assets or both as at the balance sheet date. 

According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending 

against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 

(45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. 

According to the information and explanations given to us, the physical verification of inventory has been 

conducted at reasonable intervals by the management and in the opinion, the coverage and procedure of 

such verification by the management is appropriate, having regard to size of the Company. No discrepancies 

of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventories were noticed on such physical verification of 

inventories when compared with books of account. 

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not been sanctioned any working 

capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, during any point of time of the year, from banks or 

financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets, hence reporting under clause (ii) (b) of the Order 

is not applicable. 

The Company has granted loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, 

limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year, in respect of which: 

Name of the Statute Guarantees Security Loans Advances in 
nature of loans   

Aggregate amount during the year   

  

  

  

  

- Subsidiaries/Joint Ventures Associates Nil Nil Nil Nil 

- Others Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Balance outstanding as at the balance sheet date 

- Subsidiaries/Joint Ventures Associates Nil Nil Nil Nil 

- Others Nil Nil Nil Nil 
  

The Company has not made investment or provided any guarantee or security to companies, firms, limited 

liability partnerships or other parties. 

The Investment made and loans or advances in the nature of loans granted, in our opinion, prima facie is not 

prejudicial to the company’s interest. 

According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the company has not 

provided any guarantee. 

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of loans and advances in the nature of 

loans, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments 

or receipts are regular. 
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report 

(d) There is no overdue amount of loan for more than ninety days as on 31st March 2025. 

(e) According to the information and explanation given to us, loan or advance in the nature of loan granted which 

has fallen due during the year, has not been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdue 
of existing loans given to the same parties. 

(f) According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures performed, the 

Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without 

specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3 (iii)(f) is not 

applicable. 

(iv) The Company has complied with the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of loans, investments, 

guarantees, and security. 

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposit during the 

year. 

As informed to us, no order has been passed by the Company law Board and National Company Law Tribunal or 

Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other tribunal against the company for any violation of deposit 

provisions. 

(vi) The maintenance of cost records by the Company has not been specified by the Central Government under section 

148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

(vii) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues: 

a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Income tax, 

Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, cess, and other material statutory dues 

applicable to it to the appropriate authorities. 

b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income- 

tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Value Added Tax, cess, and other material statutory dues in 
arrears as at 31 March 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

c) Details of dues of Income Tax, Excise Duty and Value Added Tax which have not been deposited as on 31 March 

2025 on account of disputes are given below: 

  

  

Name of the Statute Nature of Forum where Periodto which Amount net of deposit 

Dues Dispute is Pending Amount Relates (Rs. In Lakhs) 

Odisha VAT Tax Act VAT DCCT, Berhampur 2011-12 to 2012-13 261.13 

Kerala State GST GST State Tax Officer, 2018-19 6.95 

GST, Calicut 
  

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of 

the Company, there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or 

disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company has not defaulted in 

repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lenders. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not a declared wilful defaulter by 

any bank or financial institution or other lender. 

(x) According to the information and explanations given to us, no money was raised by way of initial public offer or 

further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year, hence reporting under clause (x) of the Order is 

not applicable 

(xi) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the company or any fraud on the com- 

pany has been noticed or reported during the year. 

(b) During the year, no fraud by the company or any fraud on the company has been noticed or reported, accord- 
ingly no such report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors 
in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central 

Government. 
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Jayshree Chemicals Limited 

Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has a mechanism or policy for whis- 

tle-blower complaints to lodge. As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower com- 

plaints received by the company during the year. 

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company, hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xiii) All transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the 

details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards 

(xiv) (a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the company has an adequate internal audit system commen- 

surate with size and nature of its business. 

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company during the year 

and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures. 

(xv) According to information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Com- 

pany, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with its 

directors and hence the provisions of section 192 of Companies Act are not applicable to the Company. 

(xvi) The company is not required to be registered as a non-banking financial company under section 45-IA of the Re- 

serve Bank of India Act, 1934, hence reporting under clause (xvi) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable. 

As represented to us by the management, the group has no CIC. 

(xvii) The company has incurred cash losses of € 0.80 Lakhs in the current financial year, = 375.65 Lakhs in the immedi- 

ately preceding financial year. 

(xviii) There has not been any resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. 

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of 

financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, the auditor’s knowledge of the Board 

of Directors and management plans, the auditor is of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date 

of the audit report that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and 

when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. 

(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us, provisions of section 135 are not applicable to the Com- 

pany as the Company is not the meeting the criteria of applicability as prescribed in section 135, hence reporting 

under clause (xx) of the Order is not applicable. 

For AMK & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 327817E 

Bhupendra Kumar Bhutia 

Partner 

Place: Kolkata Membership No. 059363 

Date: 24th April 2025 UDIN: 25059363BMGAB09452 
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Annexure to the Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of Jayshree Chemicals Limited referred to in par- 

agraph 2 (f) of Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements in our Report of even date. 

Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditors’ Report 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 

(“the Act”) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Jayshree Chemicals Limited as of March 

31,2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on “the 

internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of in- 

ternal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance 

of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of 

its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection 

of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 

financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based 

on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 

Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 

financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance 

Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such 

controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 

system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 

reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk 

that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 

based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of 

the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opin- 

ion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in ac- 

cordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting 

includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accu- 

rately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 

that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance 

with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 

prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have 

a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of col- 

lusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
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Jayshree Chemicals Limited 

Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditors’ Report 

detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods 

are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of 

changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 

reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, 

based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 

Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”. 

For AMK & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 327817E 

Bhupendra Kumar Bhutia 

Partner 

Place: Kolkata Membership No. 059363 

Date: 24th April 2025 UDIN: 25059363BMGAB09452 
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(= In Lakh) 

Particulars Note No. As on 31.03.2025 As on 31.03.2024 

I ASSETS: 

1 Non-current Assets 

Property, Plant & Equipment 2 271.64 260.15 

Other Intangible Assets 3 0.63 - 

Financial Assets 

Others Financial Assets 4 5.98 5.40 

Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 5 1.43 1.43 

Other Non current Assets 6 7.53 8.15 

287.21 275.13 

2 ~=Current Assets 

Inventories 7 5.60 19.52 

Financial Assets 

Investments 8 102.68 - 

Trade receivables 9 449.38 375.88 

Cash & cash equivalents 10 12.44 21.76 

Other Bank balances 11 804.09 760.68 

Loans 12 Se 170.00 

Others Financial Assets 13 2.20 2.00 

Current Tax Assets (Net) 96.39 96.58 

Other Current Assets 14 51.47 52.37 

1,524.25 1,498.79 

TOTAL ASSETS 1,811.46 1,773.92 

ll EQUITY AND LIABILITIES: 

1 Equity 

Equity Share capital 15 2,932.65 2,932.65 

Other Equity 16 (1,916.63) (1,889.86) 
1,016.02 1,042.79 

2  Non-current Liabilities : 

Provisions 17 2.89 3.01 

2.89 3.01 

3 Current Liabilities 

Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 18 77.97 55.75 

Trade Payables 19 

(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; - - 

(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 20.90 14.37 

and small enterprises 

Other financial liabilities 20 74.66 40.61 

Other current liabilities 21 396.04 393.54 

Provisions 22 222.98 223.85 

792.55 728.12 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,811.46 1,773.92 
  

Accounting Policies 
  

In terms of our report on even date 

For AMK & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 327817E 

Bhupendra Kumar Bhutia 

M. No. 059363 

Place: Kolkata 

Date: 24th April 2025 

Virendraa Bangur 

Director 

( Din: 00237043) 

Rajesh Kumar Singhi 

Executive Director & CFO 

( Din: 01210804) 

Puja Guin 

Company Secretary 

ICSI] Mem. No. ACS - 29481 
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Statement of Profit & Loss forthe year ended 31st March, 2025 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

(= In Lakh) 

SINo Particulars Note For the yearended For the year Ended 
No. 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

| Revenue From operations 23 1688.61 1281.39 

Il Other Income 24 85.91 114.16 

Ill =Total Income (I +I) 1,774.52 1,395.55 

IV. EXPENSES 

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 1,480.21 1,104.84 

Changes in inventories of finished goods, 25 13.92 6.12 
Stock-in -Trade and work-in-progress 

Freight & Forwarding Expense 26 41.24 34.24 

Employee benefit expense 27 75.89 72.70 

Finance costs 28 5.56 10.03 

Depreciation and Amortization Expense 29 25.78 25.29 

Other expenses 30 137.02 364.46 

Total expenses (IV) 1,779.62 1,617.68 

V__Profit(loss) before exceptional items and tax(III-IV) (5.10) (222.13) 

VI Exceptional items 21.51 128.23 

VII Profit/ (loss) before tax (V-VI) (26.61) (350.36) 

Vill Tax Expenses 

a) Current Tax a - 

b) Income tax related to earlier years = - 

c) MAT Credit Entitlement zs - 

d) Deferred Tax Ss - 

IX Profit/(loss) for the period (VII-VIII) (26.61) (350.36) 

X Other Comprehensive Income 31 

(a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (0.16) - 

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified 
to profit or loss 

(0.16) - 
IX Total Comprehensive Income for the period (IX + X) (26.77) (350.36) 

X Earnings per equity share 32 

1) Basic (0.09) (1.19) 

2) Diluted (0.09) (1.19) 

Accounting Policies 1 
  

In terms of our report on even date 

For AMK & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 327817E 

Bhupendra Kumar Bhutia 

M.No. 059363 

Place: Kolkata 

Date: 24th April 2025 
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(= In Lakh) 

PARTICULARS Year Ended Year Ended 
31-03-2025 31-03-2024 

(A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Net Profit before Tax and Extra-ordinary Items (26.61) (350.36) 

Adjustments for: 

-Allowance /Bad Debts Written Off - 218.54 

-Depreciation & Amortisation 25.78 25.29 

-Net Profit/(Loss) on sale of fixed/discarded assets 1.69 92.13 

-Interest Expenses 5.56 10.04 

-Liabilities no longer required written back Ss (24.56) 

-Net (Gain) / Loss on sale of Current Investment (2.68) - 

-Interest Income (64.25) (75.17) 

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes (60.51) (104.09) 

Adjustments for: 

-Trade and Other Payables 41.93 (7.28) 

-Trade and other Receivables (71.92) 29.96 

-Inventories 13.92 7.36 

Cash Generated from Operations : (76.58) (74.05) 

-Direct Taxes Paid 0.19 5.37 

Net Cash generated from Operating Activities (76.39) (68.68) 

(B) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Purchase/(Sale) of Property, Plant and Equipments (Net) (38.94) (0.30) 

Purchase/(Sale) of Intangibles Assets (Net) (0.66) - 

Sale/ (Purchase) of Current Investment (Net) (100.00) - 

Loan to Other Body Corporates 170.00 100.00 

Term Deposit other than cash equivalents (43.40) (43.00) 

Interest Received 63.41 75.54 

Net Cash used in Investing Activities 50.41 132.24 

(C) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Proceeds from Short Term Borrowings 22.22 (344.49) 

Interest Paid (5.56) (10.04) 

Net Cash generated/(used) in Financing Activities 16.66 (354.53) 

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents(A+B+C) (9.32) (290.97) 

Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents 21.76 312.73 

Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents 12.44 21.76 
  

This is the Cash Flow statement referred to in our Report of even date. 
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Director 
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Rajesh Kumar Singhi 

Executive Director & CFO 
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Jayshree Chemicals Limited 

Change in Equity for the year ended 31st March 2025 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

(= In Lakh) 

a___ Equity Share Capital 

1. Equity Share Capital as at 31st March, 2025 

Particulars Balance Changes in Restated Changes Balance 

as at equity share balanceatthe inequity as at 

01.04.2024 capitaldueto beginningof sharecap- 31.03.2025 

prior period thecurrentre- ital during 

error porting period the year 

Equity Share 2,932.65 - 2,932.65 - 2,932.65 

2 Equity Share Capital as at 31st March, 2024 

Particulars Balance Changes in Restated Changes Balance 

as at equity share balanceatthe inequity as at 

01.04.2023 capitaldueto beginningof sharecap- 31.03.2024 

prior period thecurrentre- ital during 

error porting period _the year 

Equity Share 2,932.65 - 2,932.65 - 2,932.65 

b Other Equity 

Particulars Reserve and Surplus Total 

Capital Capital Securities General _ Retained 

Redemption Reserve Premium Reserve _—_ Earnings 

Reserve Reserve 

Balance as at 01.04.2023 30.00 - 1,210.13 32.55 (2,812.18) (1,539.50) 

Loss for the year - - - - (350.36) (350.36) 

Other Comprehensive Income - - - - - - 

Add: Retained Earnings of a - - - - - - 

business combination 

Balance as at 31.03.2024 30.00 - 1,210.13 32.55 (3,162.54) (1,889.86) 

Loss for the year - - - - (26.61) (26.61) 

Other Comprehensive Income (0.16) (0.16) 

Add: Retained Earnings of a - - - - - - 

business combination 

Balance as at 31.03.2025 30.00 - 1,210.13 32.55 (3,189.31) (1,916.63) 
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Note1 OVERVIEW 

Overview and Notes to the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended on 31st March 2025 

1. Corporate Information 

Jayshree Chemicals Limited (JCL) is a public limited company (“transferee”) domiciled and incorporated in India and 

its shares are publicly traded on the Bombay Stock Exchange (‘BSE’), in India. The registered office of JCL is 14.NS 

Road Kolkata-700001. The Company is principally engaged in generation of wind-power in India. These financial 

statements are prepared in Indian rupees. 

The financial statements were approved and adopted by the board of directors of the Company in their meeting 

held on 24th April 2025. 

Compliance with Ind AS 

These financial statements are prepared and presented in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind 

AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time as 

notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), 

the guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), as applicable. 

Basis of preparation of financial statements 

These financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments 

and defined benefit plans which are measured at fair value or amortised cost at the end of each reporting period. 

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. All assets and liabilities have been classified as current 

and non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle. Based on the nature of supply of goods/services 

rendered to customers and time elapsed between deployment of resources and the realisation in cash and cash 

equivalents of the consideration for such services rendered, the Company has considered an operating cycle of 12 
months. 

The statement of cash flows has been prepared under indirect method, whereby profit or loss is adjusted for the 

effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or 

payments and items of income or expense associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from 

operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated. The Company considers all highly 

liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of 

changes in value to be cash equivalents. 

These standalone financial statements have been prepared by the Company. Foreign currency transactions are 

recorded at exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. Foreign currency denominated monetary 
assets and liabilities are retranslated at the exchange rate prevailing on the balance sheet dates and exchange gains 
and losses arising on settlement and restatement are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Non-monetary 

assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currencies are not retranslated. 

Use of Estimates and Judgements 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates, 

judgments, and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting 

policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the 

date of the financial statement and reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the period. Application of 

accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective judgments and 

the use of assumptions in these financial statements have been disclosed. Accounting estimates can change from 
period to period. Actual results could differ from those judgments. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as 

management become aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are 

reflected in the financial statements in the period in which the changes are made and, if material, their effects are 

disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The Company uses the following critical accounting Judgments, 

estimates and assumptions in preparation for its financial statements: 
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Jayshree Chemicals Limited 

Notes to Financial Statements 

5. 
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In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following key estimates, 

assumptions, and judgments, which have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statement: 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

(d) 

(e) 

(f) 

Income taxes 

Management judgment is required for the calculation of provision for income taxes and deferred tax assets 
and liabilities. The factors used in estimates may differ from actual outcome which could lead to significant 

adjustment to the amounts reported in the standalone financial statements. 

Contingencies 

Management judgment is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any, in respect of contin- 

gencies/claim/litigations against the Company as it is not possible to predict the outcome of pending matters 

with accuracy. 

Defined Benefit Plans 

The cost of the employment benefits such as gratuity and leave obligation are determined using actuarial val- 

uations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments 

in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. 

Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is high- 
ly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. 

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for 

plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds. 

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for specific countries. Those mortality tables 

tend to change only at intervals in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity 

increases are based on expected future inflation rates. 

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 35. 

Insurance Claims 

Insurance and other claims raised by the Company are accounted for when received owing to uncertainties 

involved 

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 

The Company reviews the useful lives and carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and intangible 

assets at the end of each reporting period. This reassessment may result in a change in depreciation and amor- 

tisation expense in future periods. 

Leases 

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Assess- 

ing whether a contract contains a lease requires significant judgement. Significant judgement is also required 

in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate. 

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods 

covered by an option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and 

periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that 

option. In assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or 

not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an 

economic incentive for the Company to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option 

to terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period 

of a lease. 

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or 

for a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics. 

Current versus non-current classification 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification. 
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(A) An asset treated as current when it is: 

(i) | Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle 

(ii) Held primarily for the purpose of trading 

(iii) Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

( iv) Cash or Cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 

twelve months after the reporting period 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

(B) A liability is current when: 

(i) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle 

(ii) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 

(iii) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period,or 

( iv) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the 
reporting period 

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 

Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities 

The company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recogni- 
tion, no classification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financials 

assets which are debt instruments; a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for man- 
aging those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The company’s senior manage- 

ment determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to 

the company’s operations. Such changes are evident to the external parties. A change in the business model occurs 

when the company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the company 

reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the 

first day of the immediately next reporting period. Following the changes in business model, the company does not 

restate any previously recognized gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest. 

Summary of Material Accounting Policies Information 

a. Revenue Recognition 

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company 

and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is meas- 

ured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined 

terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government. 

i. Sale of Goods 

Sales are recognized when the substantial risks and rewards of ownership in the goods, including custody, 
are transferred to the buyer as per the terms of the contract and are measured at the fair value of the con- 

sideration received and receivable and net of trade discounts, allowable sales return and sales tax/value 

added tax/goods and service tax. 

ii. Interest Income 

Interest Income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will 

flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on 

a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which 

is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial 

asset to the asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition. 

iii. Dividend 

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive dividend is established. 

Annual Report 2025 57 

s}
Ua
Wa
}z
e}
s 

je
ID

Ue
UI

Y



Jayshree Chemicals Limited 

Notes to Financial Statements 

58 

b. Inventories 

Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost is calculated on First in First Out (FIFO) 

method. Cost comprises expenditure incurred in the normal course of business in bringing such inventories 
to its present location and condition and includes, where applicable, appropriate overheads based on normal 

level of activity. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price less estimated costs for completion and sale. 

Obsolete, slow moving, and defective inventories are identified from time to time and, where necessary, a pro- 

vision is made for such inventories. 

Taxation 

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and deferred tax (including MAT). 

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount to be recovered from or paid to taxation 

authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively 

enacted at the reporting date. 

Income tax expense is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to 
items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income, in such cases the tax is also recognized 
directly in equity or in other comprehensive income. 

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Balance 

sheet and the tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. 

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assets 
are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences, Deferred tax assets are recognized to the 
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary 

differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. Deferred tax 

assets and deferred tax liabilities are off set, and presented as net. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent 
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differ- 
ences can be utilised. 

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) is applicable to the Company. Credit of MAT is recognised as an asset only 

when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during 
the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which 

the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the 

profit and loss account and shown as MAT credit entitlement. The Company reviews the same at each balance 

sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement to the extent there is no longer 

convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 

of loss, if any. 

Cost of any item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price including import duties and 

non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of 

bringing the item to its working condition. 

Depreciation is provided on the straight line method by depreciating carrying amount of Property, Plant and 

Equipment over remaining useful life of the assets. 

Depreciation methods, useful life and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end. 

The useful life and residual value as per such review is normally in accordance with schedule II of the Compa- 

nies Act 2013. 

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is deter- 

mined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in 

the Statement of Profit and Loss on the date of disposal or retirement. 
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Intangible Assets 

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. Intangible assets are amor- 
tized over their respective individual estimated useful life on a straight line method. 

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the 

net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit or 

loss when the asset is derecognized. 

Impairment of Assets 

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that a Property, plant and 

equipment may have been impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable 

amount of the Property, plant and equipment. If such recoverable amount of the Property, plant and equip- 

ment or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the Property, plant and equipment be- 

longs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction 
is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the profit and loss. If at the balance sheet date there is an 

indication that if a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed 

and the Asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of depreciated historical cost. 

Borrowing Costs 

Interest and other costs connected with the borrowing for the acquisition / construction of qualifying fixed 

assets are capitalized up to the date that when such asset are ready for their intended use and other borrow- 

ing cost are charged to statement of profit & loss. Borrowing cost includes exchange difference to the extent 

regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing cost. 

Lease 

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Iden- 

tification of a lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the 

lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate. 

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods 

covered by an option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and 

periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that 

option. In assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or 

not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an 

economic incentive for the Company to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option 

to terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period 

of a lease. 

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or 

for a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics. 

Company as a lessee 

The Company accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease separately from non-lease 

components of the contract and allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component based 

on the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease 

components. 

The Company recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term 

at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of 

the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before 

the commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an esti- 

mate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring the 
underlying asset or site on which it is located. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any 

accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the 

lease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement 

date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use 
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assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. Right-of-use assets are 

tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. 
Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 

commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the 

lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses in- 

cremental borrowing rate. For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the Company, on a lease-by-lease 

basis, may adopt either the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental borrowing rate 

for the portfolio as a whole. The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease payments, residual 

value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option where the Company is reasonably certain to exercise 

that option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising 

an option to terminate the lease. The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying 
amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments 

made and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect 

revised in-substance fixed lease payments. The company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of 

lease liability due to modification as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset and statement of profit and loss 

depending upon the nature of modification. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced 

to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognises any 

remaining amount of the re-measurement in statement of profit and loss. 

Company as a Lessor 

At the inception of the lease the Company classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance 

lease. The Company recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight- line 

basis over the lease term. In case of a finance lease, finance income is recognised over the lease term based 

on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor's net investment in the lease. When the 

Company is an intermediate lessor it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-lease separately. 

It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head 

lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease is a short term lease to which the Company 

applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease. 

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 Leases to short-term leases of all assets 

that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. The lease 

payments associated with these leases are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease 

term. 

Foreign Currencies Translations 

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in reporting currency by the Company at spot rates at 

the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot 

rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary 

items are recognized in statement of profit and loss. 

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the 

exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign 

currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss 
arising on translation of nonmonetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the 
gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain 
or loss is recognised in OCI or statement profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or statement profit and loss, 

respectively). 

Provision and Contingencies 

A provision is recognised if as a result of past event the company has a present legal or constructive obligation 

that is reasonably estimated and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefit will be required to settle 

the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected cash flow at a pre-tax rate that reflects 

current market assessments of the time value of the money and the risk specific to the liabilities. 
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A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by 
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company 
or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be 

required to settle the obligation. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its exist- 

ence in the financial statements. if material, are disclosed by way of notes to the accounts. 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements, as they are dependent on the outcome of 

legal or other processes. 

Employee Benefits: 

Expenses and liabilities in respect of employee benefit are recorded in accordance with Indian Accounting 

Standard (IND AS 19 employees benefit) 

(i) Short Term Employees Benefit 

Short Term Employee Benefits (i.e. benefits falling due within one year after the end of the period in which 
employees render the related service) are recognized as expenses in the period in which employee servic- 

es are rendered as per the Company's scheme based on expected obligations on undiscounted basis. 

(ii) Post-Employment Benefit Plans 

Under Defined Contribution Plan, the contribution is payable in keeping with the related schemes are 

recognized as expenses for the year. 

Under Defined Benefit Plan, the present value of the obligations is determined based on actuarial valua- 

tions using the Projected Unit Credit Method, on the basis of actuarial valuations carried out by actuary 
at each Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gain /loss, if any,arising from experience adjustments and change 

in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to Other Comprehensive income in the period in which 

they arise. 

(iii) Other Long-Term Employee Benefits 

Leave encashment/compensated absence is determined by valuations using the Projected Unit Credit 

Method, on the basis of actuarial valuations carried out by actuary at each Balance Sheet date. Actuarial 

gain /loss, if any, arising from experience adjustments and change in actuarial assumptions are charged 

or credited to Other Comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short term deposits 

with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash at banks and on hand and 

short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral 
part of Company’s Cash Management. 

Dividend 

Annual dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period in which the dividend 

is approved by the shareholders. Dividend payable and corresponding tax on dividend distribution is recog- 

nised directly in equity. 

Earnings Per Share 

Basic Earnings per equity shares are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss before OCI for the period attrib- 

utable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity share outstanding during the year. 

For calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss before OCI for the period attributable to equity 

shareholders and the weighted average number of share outstanding during the period are adjusted for the 

effect of all diluted potential equity shares. 
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62 

oO. Financial Instruments 

(a) 

(b) 

Financial Assets 

Initial Recognition and Measurement 

All financial Assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in case of financial assets not recorded at fair 

value through profit or loss, transaction cost that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. 

Subsequent measurement 

(i) Financial Assets carried at amortised Cost- A Financial Assets is subsequently measured at amortised 

cost, using effective interest rate (EIR) method, if it is held within a business model whose objective is 
to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial 

asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest term 

on the principal amount outstanding. 

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees 

or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the 

statement of profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This 

category generally applies to trade receivables, cash and bank balances, loans and other financial 

assets of the company. 

(ii) Financial Assets at fair value through other comprehensive income- A financial asset is subsequently 

measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a business model 

whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets 

and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on a specified date to cash flows that are 

solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The Company has 

made an irrevocable election for its investment which are classified as equity instruments to present 

the subsequent changes in fair value in other Comprehensive income based on its business model., 
Further in case where the company has made an irrecoverable election based on its business model 
for its investments, which are classified as equity instrument the subsequent changes in fair value are 

recognised in other comprehensive income. 

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on 

the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts 

from OCI to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may 
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. 

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes 

recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

(iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - A financial asset which is not classified in any of 

the above categories are subsequently fair valued through profit or loss 

Financial Liabilities 

Initial recognition and Measurement 

Financial Liabilities are recognised at fair value on initial recognition and in case of loan and borrowing or 

payables net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

Subsequent Measurement 

Financial Liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using effective interest rate method. Gains 

and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR 
amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on 

acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance 

costs in the statement of profit and loss. 

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance sheet date, the carrying amounts 

approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments. 
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(c) De-recognition of financial instrument 

The company de-recognises the financial assets when contractual right to cash flow from financial assets 
expire or it transfer the financial assets and transfer qualities for de-recognition under IND AS 109. A fi- 

nancial liability or a part of a financial liability is de-recognised from the company’s Balance Sheet when 

obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. 

(d) Offsetting of Financial Instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if 

there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to 

settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

Fair value financial instruments 

The company measure financial instrument at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that 
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market partic- 

ipants at the measurement date. 

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the company use various method and assumption 

that are based on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The methods used to determine 

the fair value includes discounted cash flow analysis, available quoted market price and dealer quotes and val- 

uation report etc. The method of assessing fair value results in general approximation of value and such value 

may never actually be realised. 

Fair Values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valua- 

tion techniques as follows: 

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 

directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs) 

When measuring the fair value of an asset or liability, the company uses observable market data as far as 

possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair 

value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value 

hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. 

Income Tax 

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based 

on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities 

attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses. The current income tax charge is calculated 

on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period in the coun- 

tries where the Company operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions 

taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It 

establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. 

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between 

the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the standalone financial statements. De- 

ferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted 

by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is 

realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is 

probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses. De- 

ferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets 

and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and 

tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on 

a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. Current and deferred tax is recognised 
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in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or 

directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, 

respectively. 

r. New Standards /Amendments to Existing Standard issued but not yet effective upto the date of issuance 

of the Company’s Financial Statement are disclosed below: 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 

2025, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the 

company. 
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Note 2 PROPERTY PLANT & EQUIPMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2025 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Particulars Origional Addition Sold Or Total Total Depreciation Sold Or Total W. D.V. W. D.V. 

cost during Discarded —cost Depreciation forthe Discarded Depreciation ason ason 

ason _theyear during ason_ providedupto _—year during up to 31/03/2025 31/03/2024 

01/04/2024 2024-25 2024-25 31/03/2024 01/04/2024 2024-25 2024-25 31/03/2025 
Land (Free hold) 16.11 - - 16.11 - - - - 16.11 16.11 

Buildings 5.35 c 0.60 4.75 1.99 0.17 0.11 2.05 2.70 3.36 

Plant & Machinery 635.02 38.93 0.28 673.67 397.56 25.05 0.27 422.34 251.33 237.46 

Furniture & Fittings 3.05 . . 3.05 1.64 0.22 . 1.86 1.19 1.41 

Office Equipments 4.44 5 5 4.44 3.91 0.22 5 4.13 0.31 0.53 

Electrical Installation 12.26 5 12.26 - 10.98 0.09 11.07 5 5 1.28 

676.23 38.93 13.14 702.02 416.08 25.75 11.45 430.38 271.64 260.15 

Previous year 697.64 0.30 21.71 676.23 406.48 25.29 15.69 416.08 260.15 
  

Note 3 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2025 

  

  

  

Particulars Origional Addition Sold or Total Total Amortization Sold or Total W. D.V. W. D.V. 

cost during Discarded cost Amortization forthe Discarded Amortization ason ason 

ason _theyear during ason_ providedupto _—year during up to 31/03/2025 31/03/2024 

01/04/2024 2024-25 2024-25 31/03/2025 01/04/2024 2024-25 2024-25 31/03/2025 

Trademark - 0.36 5 0.36 - 0.01 5 0.01 0.35 

Computer Software - 0.30 5 0.30 - 0.02 5 0.02 0.28 

- 0.66 - 0.66 - 0.03 - 0.03 0.63 - 
  

Previous year 
  

Note 4 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 

  

  

  

Particulars As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024 

Security Deposits 3.98 3.40 

Term Deposit of more than twelve months maturity 2.00 2.00 

5.98 5.40 
  

Note5 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET) 

Particulars As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024 

The major components of the Deferred Tax (Liabilities) / Assets based on the 
tax effects of timing differences are as follows: 

Deferred Tax Assets 

Depreciation 1.43 1.43 

Deferred Tax Liabilities 

Depreciation - - 

1.43 1.43 
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Note6 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSET 

  

  

  

Particulars As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024 

Security Deposit a 0.50 

Others-Unamortised Salami for Lease hold Land 7.53 7.65 

7.53 8.15 
  

Note 7 INVENTORIES 

  

  

Particulars As at 31.03.2025 Asat31.03.2024 

Stock in Trade 5.60 19.52 

5.60 19.52 
  

Note8 INVESTMENTS 

  

  

  

  

Particulars As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024 

Investments in Mutual Funds 

ABSL Savings Fund Growth Dir- units 9433.375 (PY:Nil) 51.57 - 

ABSL Arbit Fund Growth Dir- units181797.192 (PY:Nil) 51.11 - 

102.68 - 
  

Note9 TRADE RECEIVABLES 

  

  

  

  

Particulars As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024 

Secured-Considered Good - - 

Unsecured-Considered Good 449.38 375.88 

Unsecured- Credit Impaired 307.22 307.12 

756.60 683.00 
  

Other receivables - - 

Secured , considered good - - 

Unsecured- Credit Impaired - - 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

756.60 683.00 

Allowance for Credit Impairment (307.22) (307.12) 

449.38 375.88 

Trade Receivables ageing schedule 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Unsecured-Considered Good 

Undisputed Trade receivables —considered good 

Less than 6 months 414.02 312.59 

6 months - 1 year - 1.41 

1-2 years - - 

2-3 years 35.36 61.88 

More than 3 years - 7 

Total 449.38 375.88 
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Particulars 

(Z In Lakh) 

As at 31.03.2025 As at31.03.2024 
  

Unsecured- Considered Good 
  

Disputed Trade receivables —considered good 
  

Less than 6 months 
  

6 months - 1 year 
  

1-2 years 
  

2-3 years 
  

More than 3 years 
  

Total 
  

Unsecured- Credit Impaired 
  

Undisputed Trade receivables -considered doubful 
  

Less than 6 months 
  

6 months - 1 year 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

1-2 years - - 

2-3 years = - 

More than 3 years 16.65 16.65 

Total 16.65 16.65 

Unsecured- Credit Impaired 

Disputed Trade receivables —considered doubful 

Less than 6 months - - 

6 months - 1 year a - 

1-2 years - - 

2-3 years = - 

More than 3 years 290.57 290.47 

Total 290.57 290.47 
  

Note 10 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

  

  

  

  

  

Particulars As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024 

Balances with banks 

- In current accounts 0.66 18.07 

Cheques/ Pay order in hand 11.47 2.98 

Cash in hand 0.31 0.71 

12.44 21.76 
  

Note 11 OTHER BANK BALANCES 

  

  

  

Particulars As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024 

Special Term Deposit /Balance with banks held as Margin Money 161.00 153.17 

Escrow Account with Bank 643.09 607.51 

804.09 760.68 
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Note 12 LOANS 

  

  

Particulars As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024 

Loan to Body Corporates a 170.00 

- 170.00 
  

Note 13 OTHERS FINANCIAL ASSETS 

  

  

  

Particulars As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024 

Security Deposits 0.13 0.77 

Interest Accrued but not due on Deposit 2.07 1.23 

2.20 2.00 
  

Note 14 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Particulars As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024 

Other advances 

Advance to Parties - - 

Other Advances 0.09 0.26 

Others 

Prepaid Expenses 12.18 11.13 

Balances with Government Dept 39.20 40.98 

51.47 52.37 
  

Note 15 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 

  

  

  

Particulars As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024 

Authorised 

Equity Share of % 10/- par value 

5,60,50,000 (5,60,50,000) Equity Share 5,605.00 5,605.00 
  

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital 

Equity Share of % 10/- par value 

2,93,26,457 (2,93,26,457) Equity Share of €10/- each fully paid-up 2,932.65 2,932.65 

2,932.65 2,932.65 

  

  

  

  

Notes: 

1. The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of %10/-. Each holder of 

equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. 

N In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the 

remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts.However,no such preferential 

amounts exist currently.The distribution will be in proportion to the number of shares held by the shareholders. 

3. Details of Share holders holding more than 5% of total shares as on 31st March, 2025. 

  

  

  

Name of Shareholder % to Total Shares No. of Shares 

Shree Satyanaran Investments Co Ltd 7.54 2211248 

Kilkotagiri and Thirumbadi Plantations Ltd 6.26 1837000 

Veer Enterprises Limited 10.71 3141958 
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(= In Lakh) 

4. The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding as at 31st March, 2025 is as below: 

Particulars As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024 

Number of shares at the begnning 29326457 29326457 

Number of shares at the closing 29326457 29326457 

For each class of equity share capital: 

5. Shares held by promoters as at 31st March 2025: 

Promoters Name No. of Shares % Change 
during the year 

Bharti Bangur 48,775 - 

Saurabh Bangur 1,55,424 - 

Shashi Bangur 5,00,750 - 

Shree Kumar Bangur 4,37,500 - 

Shrivatsa Bangur 48,775 - 

Virendraa Bangur 4,92,500 - 

Promoter Group 

Akhivi Tea Plantations And Agro Industries Limited 57,237 - 

Gold Mohore Investment Company Limited 8,04,285 - 

Kilkotagiri and Thirumbadi Plantations Limited 18,37,000 - 

The Indra Company Limited 2,82,291 - 

Orbit Udyog Private Limited 9,34,760 - 

Shree Satyanarayan Investments Company Limited 22,11,248 - 

The Diamond Company Limited 8,16,893 - 

Union Company Limited 12,56,388 - 

Veer Enterprises Limited 31,41,958 - 

West Coast Paper Mills Limited 5,42,399 - 

Particulars As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024 
  

Other Reserves 

Capital redemption reserve 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Balance as per last Account 30.00 30.00 

Securities Premium 

Balance as per last Account 1,210.13 1,210.13 

General reserve 

Balance as per last Account 32.55 32.55 

Retained Earnings 

Surplus at the beginning of the year (3,162.54) (2,812.18) 

Add : Profit for the year (26.61) (350.36) 

Add/(Less): Remeasurements of the net defined benefit Plans (0.16) - 

(3,189.31) (3,162.54) 

Total (1,916.63) (1,889.86) 
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Note 17 PROVISIONS 

  

  

Particulars As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024 

Provision for employee benefits (Leave) 2.89 3.01 

2.89 3.01 
  

Note 18 BORROWINGS 

  

  

  

Particulars As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024 

From Banks 

Overdraft Against Fixed Deposit 77.97 55.75 

77.97 55.75 
  

Note 19 TRADE PAYABLES 

  

  

  

Particulars As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024 

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises 5 - 

Others 20.90 14.37 

20.90 14.37 
  

Trade Payables ageing schedule 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

MSME- other than disputed dues 

Less than 1 year = - 

1-2 years - - 

2-3 years - - 

More than 3 years - 7 

Total . - 

Other than MSME- other than disputed dues 

Less than 1 year 20.90 14.37 

1-2 years - - 

2-3 years - - 

More than 3 years - 

Total 20.90 14.37 

MSME- disputed dues 5 - 

Other than MSME- disputed dues 5 - 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Note 20 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

  

  

  

Particulars As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024 

Liabilities for Expenses 73.64 39.56 

Amount Due to Employee 1.02 1.05 

74.66 40.61 
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Note 21 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Particulars As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024 

Other advances 

Advances from Customers 384.27 384.27 

Others 

TDS, GST and other taxes payable 3.74 1.28 

PF, ESI amount payable 0.56 0.60 

Gratuity Payable 1.77 1.69 

Security Deposits 5.70 5.70 

396.04 393.54 
  

Note 22 PROVISIONS 

  

  

  

Particulars As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024 

Provision for employee benefits (for leave) 2.56 2.21 

Provision for Expenses 220.42 221.64 

222.98 223.85 
  

Note 23 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 

31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

Sale of products 

Domestic 1,688.61 1,281.39 

Export 2 - 

1,688.61 1,281.39 

Notes: 

Trade Receivables 449.38 375.88 

Contract Assets a - 
  

Contract Liabilities - - 

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days. 

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue earned from supplying/providing products/services, as receipt of 

consideration is conditional on successful completion of milestone. Upon acceptance by the customer, the amounts 

recognised as contract assets are reclassified to trade receivables. Contract liabilities include advances received to deliver 

products and invoices raised in excess of revenue to be recognised. 
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Note 24 OTHER INCOME 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 

31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

Interest Income 

From Bank 50.67 48.07 

From IT Department 0.43 0.55 

From Others 13.15 27.10 

Other non-operating income 

Net gain on Sale of Current Investments 2.68 - 

Provision & Excess Liabilities Written Back a 24.57 

Misc Income 5 0.06 

Rent Received 18.98 13.81 

85.91 114.16 
  

Note 25 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, STOCK-IN-TRADE AND WORK-IN-PROGRESS 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 
31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

Opening Stock 

Stock-in-Trade 19.52 25.64 

19.52 25.64 

Less : Closing Stock 

Stock-in-Trade 5.60 19.52 

5.60 19.52 

(Increase) / Decrease in Stock 13.92 6.12 
  

Note 26 FREIGHT & FORWARDING EXPENSE 

  

  

  

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 

31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

Freight 41.19 34.24 

Others 0.05 - 

(Increase) / Decrease in Stock 41.24 34.24 
  

Note 27 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 

  

  

  

  

  

  

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 

31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

Salaries ,Wages and Bonus 57.55 55.13 

Contribution to provident and other funds 

i) Provident Fund and Pension Fund 3.82 3.63 

ii) Gratuity 1.61 1.69 

Staff Welfare Expenses 12.91 12.25 

75.89 72.70 
  

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment 

benefits received Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, 

the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified. The Company will assess the impact of the Code 
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when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period when the Code becomes effective. 

Note 28 FINANCE COSTS 

  

  

  

  

  

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 
31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

Interest to 

Banks 5.27 4.76 

Related Party - 441 

Taxes 0.27 - 

Others 0.02 0.86 
  

Other Borrowing Costs - 7 

5.56 10.03 
  

  

Note 29 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE 

  

  

  

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 

31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipments 25.75 25.29 

Amortization on Intangibles Assets 0.03 - 

25.78 25.29 
  

Note 30 OTHER EXPENSES 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 

31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

Rent and Lease Premium 10.98 19.96 

Repairs to machinery 21.02 19.91 

Repairs to others 1.70 2.72 

Insurance 0.96 0.84 

Rates and Taxes excluding taxes on Income 1.11 0.80 

Travelling and Vehicle Expenses 27.02 19.54 

Legal and Professional Expenses 44.77 44.13 

Sales Tax /GST & TDS Written off 0.58 1.14 

Sundry Dr. balance written off 0.63 - 

Damage Material Written off 0.18 1.54 

Director's Sitting Fees 1.75 1.50 

Service Charges 13.79 15.91 

Payments to the Auditor 

As Auditor 0.75 0.75 

For Quarterly Review 0.45 1.09 

For Tax Audit 0.30 - 

For Fees for Other Services (incl for issuing various certificates) 0.29 0.35 

Loss on Sale of PPE /Discarded 1.69 6.02 

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts Ss 218.54 

Miscellaneous Expenses 9.05 9.72 

137.02 364.46 
  

Note 31 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

Annual Report 2025 73 

s}
Ua
Wa
}z
e}
s 

je
ID

Ue
UI

Y



Jayshree Chemicals Limited 

Notes to Financial Statements 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

(= In Lakh) 

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 

31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans (0.16) - 

(0.16) - 

Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

Net profit attributable to equity shareholders (%) (26.61) (350.36) 

20 Weighted average of equity shares (Nos.) 293.26 293.26 

Nominal value of equity shares (In Rs.) 10 10 

Basic/Diluted EPS (in rupees) (0.09) (1.19) 
  

Note 33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (TO THE EXTENT NOT PROVIDED FOR)- 

i. Contingent Liabilities: 

1. Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts. 

  

  

  

  

Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

Sales Tax Demand under Appeals 261.13 261.13 

State Goods and Service Tax Deptt. Kerala (Net of Deposit of = 0.37 Lakhs) 6.95 7.32 

Others- Grasim Industries Ltd. (*) 3106.00 3106.00 

Others- Infrastructure Development Cess (IDC) - 61.00 
  

(*) The Orissa High Court Arbitration Centre, Cuttack (‘The Tribunal’) had given an award on 12th April 2024 directing the 

Company to pay M/s Grasim Industries Ltd. . (Formerly Aditya Birla Chemical (India) Ltd.) reimbursement of costs of Rs. 

211 Lakhs with interest @9% p.a. w.e.f. date of filing of claim petition till the date of actual payment along with Rs. 2870 

Lakhs towards remediation costs and reimbursement of Arbitration Costs of Rs. 25 lakh. 

The Company has filed an objection against the Award before the Commercial Court, Bhubaneswar. The Company has 

also filed a stay petition against the execution order for execution of Award before the Hon'ble Calcutta High Court. 

2. Guarantees 

Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

Guarantees 3.00 3.00 

3. Commitment 

  

  

Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

a. Estimated Capital Commitments (Net of advances) NIL NIL 

b. Other Commitments NIL NIL 
  

Cecry) The average net profit of the Company made during the three immediate financial years, as calculated under 
the provision of section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013, is negative therefore no amount has been earmarked 

for the purpose of Corporate Social Responsibilities u/s 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Cece The exceptional item consists sum of Rs 21.51 Lakhs of expenses incurred relating to sale of caustic soda 
manufacturing plant to Grasim Industries Ltd. (Formerly Aditya Birla Chemical (India) Ltd.) during the financial 
year 2014-2015. 
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Fas Details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprise as per MSMED Act, 2006 as per the information available with 
the Company: 

S.No. Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

(a) (i) Principal amount remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting 

year Nil Nil 

(ii) Interest due thereon 

(b) Interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of MSMED Act, 2006 Nil Nil 

along with the amount of the payment made to the suppliers beyond 

the appointed date 

(c) Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making the Nil Nil 
payments (which have been paid but beyond the due date during the 

year) but without adding interest specified under this Act 
  

  

(d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of Nil Nil 

the financial year 

(e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable in Nil Nil 
succeeding years, until such interest is actually paid 

Note 37 EMPLOYEE DEFINED BENEFITS: 

(a) Defined Contribution Plans 

The Company has recognized expenses towards the defined contribution plans as under: 

  

  

S.No. Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

a. _ Contribution to Gratuity fund 1.77 1.69 

b. Contribution to Provident fund & Pension Fund (Government) 3.82 3.63 
  

(b) Defined Benefit Plans as per actuarial valuation on 31st March, 2025 and recognised in the financial 
statements in respect of Employee Benefit Schemes: 

Particulars Gratuity (Funded) 

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 
  

  

| Reconciliation of Defined Benefit Obligations (DBO) during the year 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

ended 31th March, 2025 

1 Present value of DBO at the beginning of period 8.56 6.60 

2 Current service cost 1.55 1.55 

3 Interest cost 0.61 0.49 

4 Past Service Cost - - 

5 Actuarial (Gains)/Losses 0.17 (0.08) 

6 Benefits paid - - 

7 Present value of DBO at the end of period 10.89 8.56 
  

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 
  

Il Reconciliation of Fair Value of plan assets during the year ended 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

31st March, 2025 

1 Plan assets at the beginning of period 6.87 4.33 

2 Expected return on plan assets 0.55 0.40 

3 Actuarial Gains/(Losses) a - 

4 Company contribution 1.69 2.27 

5 Benefits paid - - 

6 Remeasurements - Return on Assets (Excluding Interest Income) 0.01 (0.13) 

7 Plan assets at the end of period 9.12 6.87 
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31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

Ill Reconciliation of fair value of assets and obligation as at 31st March, 

2025 

1 Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation 10.89 8.56 

2 Fair value on plan assets 9.12 6.87 

3 Status [Surplus/(Deficit)] - - 

4 Net Defined Benefit Asset/(Liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet (1.77) (1.69) 

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

IV Expenses recognised during the year 

1 Current service cost 1.55 1.55 

2 Net Interest cost 0.61 0.49 

3 Expected Return on Plan Assets (0.55) (0.40) 

4 Past Service Cost a - 

5 Total expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss 1.61 1.64 

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

V Other Comprehensive Income 

Re measurements of the net defined benefit liability/(assets) a - 

Actuarial (gain)/loss for the year on PBO 0.16 0.06 

Actuarial (gain)/loss for the year on Asset . : 

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

VI Major category of plan assets as a % of the total plan assets as at 

31st March 2025 

Investment in Group Gratuity Plan 98.90% 97.52% 

Bank Balance 1.10% 2.48% 

Total 100.00% 100.00% 

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

VIl_ Actuarial assumptions 

1 Discount rate (%) 7.00% 7.10% 

2 Expected Rate of Return on Assets 7.00% 7.10% 

3 Rate of escalation in salary (per annum) (%) 5.00% 4.00% 

4 Mortality table (IALM) 2012-14 2012-14 

Sensitivity Analysis 

Particulars Changein Assumptions 31st March, 2025 

Discount Rate 1.00 % increase 10.44 

1.00 % decrease 11.42 

Change in salary increase 1.00 % increase 11.41 

1.00 % decrease 10.44 
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Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

Plan Liabilities -3.94% -3.04% 

Plan Assets -0.13% 2.98% 

Expected Cash flow for following years 

Year Gratuity 

a) April 2025 - March 2026 3.93 

b) April 2026- March 2027 = 

c) April 2027— March 2028 - 

d) April 2028- March 2029 3.72 

e) April 2029 - March 2030 -   

+> ) April 2030- and onwards 
  

Note 38 SEGMENT INFORMATION AS PER IND AS-108 

The Company is engaged in three primary business segments viz. Trading Division, Wind Power and Electric. Segments 
have been identified and reported taking into account the nature of the products, the differing risks and returns, the 

organizational structure and internal business reporting system. 

a) Information about Primary Business Segments: 

SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025 

Segment Revenue, Segment Result, Segment Assets & Segment Liabilities 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Particulars 31-03-2025 31-03-2024 

Segment Revenue (Gross) 

Trading Division 1619.28 1205.60 

Wind Power Division 69.34 75.80 

Electric Division a - 

Net Sales/Income from Operations 1,688.62 1,281.40 

Segment Results 

Profit / (Loss) before tax and interest from each segment 

Trading Division 20.95 (208.86) 

Wind Power Division 19.29 29.04 

Electric Division (3.61) 14.16 

Net Profit / (Loss) for the year ( before finance costs, tax and exceptional 36.63 (165.66) 

items) from each segment 

Less-Finance Costs (5.56) (10.04) 

Add/ (Less)-Exceptional Item (net) (21.51) (128.24) 

Less: Other Un-allocable expenditure net off un-allocable income (36.17) (46.42) 

Total Profit / (loss ) before Tax (26.61) (350.36) 

SEGMENT ASSETS 

Trading Division 590.07 334.41 

Wind Power Division 320.51 333.15 

Electric Division 10.69 11.63 

Unallocated Asset 890.19 1094.74 

TOTAL ASSETS 1,811.46 1,773.94 
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Particulars 31-03-2025 31-03-2024 

SEGMENT LIABILITIES 

Trading Division 84.68 2.65 

Wind Power Division 46.45 10.01 

Electric Division 9.06 10.35 

Unallocated Liabilities 655.25 708.14 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 795.44 731.15 
  

b) Note: 

Segment assets and segment liabilities represent assets and liabilities of respective segment. Investments, tax relat- 

ed assets/ liabilities and other assets and liabilities that cannot be allocated to a segment on reasonable basis have 

been treated separately. 

Information about Secondary Geographical Segments: 

c) The Company has common property, plant and equipment located in India for producing/selling goods for domes- 

tic markets. Therefore, the value of property, plant and equipment and additions thereto cannot be allocated to the 

geographical segments. Hence, the total carrying amount of segment assets and cost incurred during the period to 

acquire segment assets has not been given in respect of secondary segments. 

Note 39 RELATED PARTY INFORMATION AS PER IND AS 24 

|. List of Related Party 

(a) Key Management Personnel (KMP) 

  

  

Name of the Key Management Personnel Relationship 

Shree Kumar Bangur Cessation w.ef. 11/11/2024 Chairman 

Virendraa Bangur up to 11/11/2024 Director 
  

Virendraa Bangur Appointment w.ef. 12/11/2024 Chairman & Director 
  

Rajesh Kumar Singhi Executive Director & CFO 
  

  

  

  

  

  

Akash Ghuwalewala Cessation w.e.f. 20/02/2025 Company Secretary 

Krishna Kumar Kothari Director 

Rishi Bajoria Director 

Arpita Chakraverti Saha Director 

(b) Relative of Key Managerial Personnel 

Name of the Relative of KMP Relationship 

Bharti Bangur Relative of KMP 
  

(c) Entities in which Control of the Company and/or Key Management Personal exist 

Name of the Entity Nature of Control 
  

Veer Enterprises Limited Control of KMP 
  

The Indra Company Limited Control of KMP 
  

Shree Satyanarayan Investments Co. Ltd. Control of KMP 
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(= In Lakh) 

ll. Transaction with related parties 

2024-2025 2023-2024 

Related Party transactions are as follows: 

Nature of Transactions 

Remuneration Paid to KMP 

Akash Ghuwalewala 9.74 9.51 

Rajesh Kumar Singhi 24.00 20.60 

Professional Fees Paid to Relative of KMP 

Bharti Bangur 4.80 4.80 

Directors Sitting Fees Paid to KMP 

Shree Kumar Bangur 0.15 0.10 

Virendraa Bangur 0.30 0.25 

Krishna Kumar Kothari 0.50 0.45 

Arpita Chakraverti Saha 0.40 0.40 

Rishi Bajoria 0.40 0.30 

Loans Repayment 

Loan Repayment- Shree Satyanarayanan Investments Co. Ltd. a 200.00 

Loan Repayment- Veer Enterprises Ltd. a 200.00 

Loan Interest Payment- Shree Satyanarayanan Investments Co. Ltd. a 0.26 

Loan Interest Payment- Veer Enterprises Ltd. a 4.54 

Others 

Rent & Others paid - Veer Enterprises Ltd. 6.17 13.55 

Security Deposit refund to Veer Enterprises Ltd. 2.60 - 

Rent Paid - The Indra Company Limited (w.e.f from 01.09.2024) 0.28 - 

Security Deposit Paid-The Indra Company Ltd. 0.12 - 

Deposit received from Shree Satyanarayanan Investments Co. Ltd. - 1.00 

Deposit refund to Shree Satyanarayanan Investments Co. - 1.00 
  

Ill. Outstanding Balances: 

Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 
  

Veer Enterprises Ltd. 
  

The Indra Company Limited 
  

Shree Satyanarayan Investments Co. Ltd 
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Financial Instrument by category 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

Carrying FairValue Carrying Fair Value 

Amount Amount 

Financial assets/ liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

Investment- 

Mutual Fund 102.68 102.68 - - 

Financial Assets designated at amortised Cost 

Trade and Other Receivables 449.38 - 375.88 - 

Cash and Cash Equivalent 12.44 - 21.76 - 

Fixed Deposits with Bank 804.09 - 760.68 - 

Loan a a 170.00 - 

Other Financial assets 8.18 - 7.40 - 

Financial Liabilities designated at amortised cost 

Borrowings 77.97 55.75 

Trade and Other payables 20.90 5 14.37 - 

Other Financial Liabilities 74.66 a 40.61 - 
  

Fair Value Hierarchy 

Level-1_ Quoted Price (unadjusted) is active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

Level-2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level-1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 

directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.) derived from prices) 

Level-3_ Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level-1 that are based on non-observable market data. 

The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of 
March 31, 2025: 

  

  

Particulars As of Fair value measurement at end of the 

31st March, 2025 reporting period/year using 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

Assets 
  

Investments in equity instruments 7 - - - 

Investments in preference Share - - - - 

Investment in Mutual Fund 102.68 - 102.68 - 

Derivative financial instruments - - - - 

Liabilities 

Derivative financial instruments - - - - 

  

  

  

  

  

The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of 
March 31, 2024: 

  

  

Particulars As of Fair value measurement at end of the 

31st March, 2024 reporting period/year using 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

Assets 
  

Investments in equity instruments - - - - 

Investment in Mutual Fund - - - - 

Liabilities 

Derivative financial instruments - - - - 
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Note 41 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES 

The Company's financial liabilities include Loan and borrowing, security deposits, retention money and Trade & other 

payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations. The Company's financial 

assets include investments, trade & other receivables, deposits and cash & cash equivalents. 

Notes to Financial Statements 

The Company’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks 
to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company's financial performance. The Company uses derivative financial 

instruments to hedge certain risk exposures. The Company does not acquire or issue derivative financial instruments for 

trading or speculative purposes. 

The Company's activities expose it to Credit Risk, Liquidity Risk, Market Risk, and Equity Price Rise. The Company has 

a Risk management policy and its management is supported by a Risk management committee that advises on risks 
and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The Risk management committee provides 

assurance to the Company's management that the Company’s risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and 

procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies 

and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are 
summarised below. 

A. Credit Risk- A risk that counterparty may not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, 
leading to a financial loss is defined as Credit Risk. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating and 

financial activities. 

Customer credit riskis managed bythe respective marketing department subject to the Company’s established policy, 

procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. The Company reviews the creditworthiness of 

these customers on an on-going basis. The Company estimates the expected credit loss on the basis of past data, 

experience and policy laid down in this respect. The maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date is 

the carrying value of the trade receivables disclosed in Note 9 (Nine) as the Company does not hold any collateral 
as security. The Company has a practice to provide for doubtful debts as per its approved policy. 

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis. The calculation is based on 

historical data of credit losses. 

The ageing analysis of the receivables (gross of provision) has been considered from the date the invoice falls due. 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Particulars Neither due Past due Total 

nor impaired Upto6 6to12months Above 12 
(including months months 

unbilled) 

Trade receivables 

As at 31st March, 2025 

Secured - - - a 

Unsecured - 414.02 - 35.36 449.38 

Total - 414.02 - 35.36 449.38 

As at 31st March, 2024 

Secured - - - - 

Unsecured - 312.59 1.41 61.88 375.88 

Total - 312.59 1.41 61.88 375.88 
  

B. Liquidity Risk- A risk that the Company may not be able to settle or meet its obligations at a reasonable price is 

defined as liquidity risks. The Company's treasury department is responsible for managing liquidity, funding as 

well as settlement management. In addition, processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior 

management. Management monitors the Company's net liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of 

expected cash flows. 
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The Company's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of 

cash credits, Term loans among others. 

C. Market Risk- A risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument may fluctuate because of 

changes in market prices is defined as Marketing Risk. Such changes in the value of financial instruments may result 

from changes in the foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates, credit, liquidity and other market changes. 

(i) Foreign Currency Risk- A risk that the fair value or future value of the cash flows of a forex exposure will 
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates is defined as Foreign Currency Risk. The Company's 

exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s import and foreign 

currency loan/ derivatives operating activities. The Company, as per its risk management policy, uses foreign 

exchange and other derivative instruments primarily to hedge foreign exchange exposure. The management 

monitors the foreign exchange fluctuations on a continuous basis. 

Derivative instruments and un-hedged foreign currency exposure: 

The Company does not enter into any derivative instruments for trading or speculative purposes. 

(ii) Interest rate risk-The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to 

long term debt. The Company is not exposed to such risk as on 31st March, 2025. 

Maturity profile of financial liabilities 

The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting 

date based on contractual undiscounted payments. 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Financial Liabilities 0-1 year 1-5 year 5-10 year Above 10 years 

As at 31st March 2025 

Borrowings 77.97 5 5 - 

Trade Payables 20.90 - - - 

Other financial liabilities 39.45 3.61 31.60 a 

Total 138.68 3.61 31.60 - 

As at 31st March, 2024 

Borrowings 55.75 - - - 

Trade Payables 14.37 - - - 

Other financial liabilities 1.56 3.72 35.33 - 

Total 71.68 3.72 35.33 - 
  

Note 42 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 

The Company's objective when managing capital (defined as net debt and equity) is to safeguard the Company's 

ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns to shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, 

while protecting and strengthening the Balance Sheet through the appropriate balance of debt and equity funding. 

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in taking into consideration the economic 

conditions and strategic objectives of the Company. 

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued capital, share premium and all other 

equity reserves. Net debt includes, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables less cash and short 

term deposits. 

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure 

that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure 

requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and 

borrowings. There have been no breaches of the financial covenants of any interest bearing loans and borrowing for 
reported periods. 
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Note 43 ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES: 

a. The company has no immovable property whose title deeds are not held in the name of the company and it also 

has no such immovable property which is jointly held with others,. 

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment accordingly disclosure as to whether the 

revaluation is based on the valuation by a registered valuer as defined under rule 2 of the Companies (Registered 

Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 2017 is not applicable to the Company. 

No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under 

the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder, the company for the 

financial year 2024-25. 

The Company has taken borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets 
(Term Deposits) during the financial year ended 31 03 2025. 

The Company is not declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender. 

The company has not entered into any transactions with companies which are struck off under section 248 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 during the financial year ended on 31st March,2025. 

The Company satisfied all the charges on the assets of the Company, except for Rs. 3.89 Lakhs for which whole 

amounts of Rs. 3.89 Lakhs paid to the Charge Holder (Governor of Odisha) and the Company is having “No Objection 

Certificate from the Charge Holder, the Company is pursuing the charge holder to file satisfaction of charge to 

Registrar of Companies. 

During the year Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium 

or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) 

with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall 

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 

behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

(ii) Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; the company. 

i. | During the year Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 

entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the 
company shall 

(i) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 

on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

The Company has no such transaction which are not recorded in the books of accounts during the year and also 

there are not such unrecorded income and related assets related to earlier years which have been recorded in the 

books of account during the year. 

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year 
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Note 44 RATIO ANALYSIS 

The ratios for the years ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 are as follows : 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Particulars Numerator Denominator As at As at % Variance Reason for 

31st March, 31st March, Variance 

2025 2024 

Current Ratio Current Assets Current 1.92 2.06 -6.57% 

Liabilities 

Debt-Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholder's 0.08 0.05 43.53% Increase of total 
Equity outstanding Debts 

Debt Service Earnings available Debt Service - - - 

Coverage Ratio for debt service 

Return on Equity Net Profits after Average (0.03) (0.29) -91.01% Due to increase in 

Ratio taxes Shareholder’s Sales and reduction 

Equity in exceptional 
expenses 

Inventory Sales Average 134.43 55.23 143.40% Due to increase in 

turnover ratio Inventory Sales 

Trade Receivables Net Credit Sales Average Trade 4.09 2.61 56.82% Due to increase in 

turnover ratio Receivables Sales 

Trade payables Net Credit Average Trade 83.09 40.51 105.09% Due to increase in 

turnover ratio Purchases Payables Purchases 

Net capital Net Sales Average 2.25 1.45 55.46% Due to increase in 

turnover ratio Working Sales 
Capital 

Net profit ratio Net Profits after Net Sales (0.02) (0.27) -94,24% 

taxes 

Return on Capital Earnings before Capital 0.00 (0.22)  -101.98% Due to increase in 
employed interest and taxes Employed Sales and reduction 

Return on Net Profits after Total Assets (0.01) (0.18) -91.78% in exceptional 

investment taxes expenses 

Operating margin Earnings before Net Sales 0.00 (0.25) -101.14% 
interest and taxes 
  

a. Previous year figures are regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary. 

As per our Report of even date 

For AMK & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 327817E 

Bhupendra Kumar Bhutia 

M. No. 059363 

Place: Kolkata 

Date: 24th April 2025 
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